
 

Special Council 
Agenda 

 
 
The agenda for the Special Meeting of Council to be held in the Council Chambers of the 
Municipal Hall, 8645 Stave Lake Street, Mission, British Columbia on Monday, May 8, 2017 
commencing at 1:00 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

3. NEW BUSINESS  

 (a) 2016 Audit Results and Communications Page 2 

 

 This report is provided to present Council with the results of the audit 
of the District’s 2016 financial statements, as well as related 
communications from the District’s auditors.  The District’s auditor will 
be in attendance at the Council meeting to present their audit findings, 
and answer any related questions. This report is provided for 
information purposes only and Council action is not required.  
 

 

 (b) Draft 2016 Financial Statements Page 26 

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Council consider and resolve: 

That the District of Mission’s draft 2016 financial statement, attached 
as Appendix A to the Director of Finance’s report dated May 8, 2017 
entitled Draft 2016 Financial Statements, be approved. 

 

4. BYLAWS FOR CONSIDERATION  

 
(a) Annual Tax Rates Bylaw 5643-2017 

A bylaw to impose property tax rates for the year 2017 
Adoption 

Page 66 

5. ADJOURNMENT  
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File:   05-1680-20-2016  

DATE:   May 8, 2017 
TO:   Mayor and Council 
FROM: Kris Boland, Director of Finance 
SUBJECT:  2016 Audit Results and Communications 
ATTACHMENT: Appendix A – Audit Results and Communications Report to the Mayor and 

Council 

This report is provided to present Council with the results of the audit of the District’s 2016 financial 
statements, as well as related communications from the District’s auditor. The District’s auditor will 
be in attendance at the Council meeting to present their audit findings, and answer any related 
questions. This report is provided for information purposes only and Council action is not required. 

PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this report is to present to Council the results of the audit of the District’s 2016 
financial statements.  

BACKGROUND: 
The District’s auditor, BDO Canada LLP, have provided their “Audit Results and Communications 
Report to the Mayor and Council”, which is attached as Appendix A. Their report provides a summary 
of their audit of the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. The 
District’s auditor, BDO Canada LLP, will be in attendance at the Council meeting to present their audit 
findings, and answer any related questions.  
Following is a brief summary of the Auditor’s report: 

• Materiality: outlines the materiality levels determined by the auditor for use in conducting the 
audit. Misstatements are considered to be material if they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. Final 
materiality was $1,447,000, based on approximately 2% of normalized revenues. The report 
confirms there were no adjusted or unadjusted misstatements identified during the audit that 
were determined to be above “clearly trivial” amounts;  

• Audit Findings: summarizes the auditor’s findings during the audit. All audit testing was 
executed as planned and no issues were noted, the estimates in the financial statements are 
reasonable, and the disclosures relating to accounting estimates are in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards. There were no significant unadjusted 
differences or disclosure omissions identified, and there were no year-end audit adjustments; 

• Fraud Discussion: Canadian generally accepted auditing standards require the auditor to 
discuss fraud risk with Council on an annual basis. This discussion outlines the auditor’s 
responsibilities for detecting fraud, and confirms the auditor is not aware of any actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud; 
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• Internal Control Matters: internal controls are intended to prevent, detect and correct fraud 
and errors. This section outlines the auditor’s procedures for reviewing the District’s internal 
controls environment, and confirms there were no deficiencies in internal controls found; 

• Appendix A – Draft Independent Auditor’s Report: includes a draft of the Independent 
Auditor’s Report that will be appended to the District’s 2016 financial statements, which 
includes the Auditor’s opinion on the District’s financial statements. The Auditor’s opinion is 
that the District’s 2016 financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects;  

• Appendix B – Representation Letter: discusses the various representations that 
management made to the auditor during the course of the audit; and 

• Appendix C – Management Letter: highlights areas observed by the auditor where they feel 
they can provide practical and constructive comments on various District policies and 
practices. It should be noted that the existence of points does not mean that there are 
significant problems with systems or staff; they are just recommendations to make good 
systems better. The District’s responses to these comments are included in the report.  

Lastly, the report confirms the auditor’s independence to the Mayor and Council.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. A separate report discussing 
the District’s 2016 financial statement results is included on this agenda.  

COMMUNICATION: 
No communication action is required.  

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION:  
The District’s auditor, BDO Canada LLP, have provided the attached “Audit Results and 
Communications Report to the Mayor and Council,” as a summary of their audit of the District’s 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. 

SIGN-OFFS:  

 
Kris Boland, Director of Finance 

 
Reviewed by:  
Kerri Onken, Deputy Treasurer/Collector 
 

Comment from Chief Administrative Officer: 
Reviewed 
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Direct Line: 604-443-4716 
E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca 

 
April 26, 2017 
 
Mayor and Council 
The District of Mission 
8645 Stave Lake Street 
Mission, BC   V2V 4L9 
 
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
We are pleased to present the results of our audit of the financial statements of the District of 
Mission (the “District”) for the year ended December 31, 2016.  The purpose of our report is to 
summarize certain aspects of the audit that we believe to be of interest to the Mayor and Council 
and should be read in conjunction with the draft financial statements. 
 
Our audit and therefore this report will not necessarily identify all matters that may be of interest 
to the Mayor and Council in fulfilling its responsibilities. 
 
This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Mayor and Council and should not be 
distributed without our prior consent. Consequently, we accept no responsibility to a third party 
that uses this communication. 
 
We wish to express our appreciation for the co-operation we received during the audit from the 
District’s management and staff that assisted us in carrying out our work.  We look forward to 
discussing the contents of this report and any other matters that you consider appropriate. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
Bill Cox, FCPA, FCA 
Partner through a corporation  
BDO Canada LLP 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
 
BC/mkn 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Audit Results Our audit of the financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance as to whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. 

A detailed description of our audit results has been included on page 6. 

Status of Audit As of the date of this final report, we have substantially completed our 
audit of the December 31, 2016 financial statements pending the 
completion of the items highlighted below.  These items will need to be 
completed prior to issuance of our audit report on the financial statements: 

• Receipt of the signed management representation letter 
• Subsequent events review through to financial statement approval 

date 
• Approval of financial statements by Council 

Audit Risks In accordance with our audit plan, our procedures focused on the following 
areas that we identified as containing risks of material misstatements: 

• Management override of internal controls 
• Revenue recognition 
• Employee future benefits 
• Landfill liability 
• Cash and investments 
• Staff salaries 
• Tangible capital assets and accumulated amortization 
• Contaminated sites 

We have summarized the results of our audit procedures for each of these 
risk areas, beginning on page 6 of this report. 

Internal Control 
Over Financial 
Reporting 

We did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal controls over 
financial reporting during the year ended December 31, 2016 that we 
considered to be material weaknesses. 

Fraud and Illegal 
Activities 

We developed procedures within our audit plan as recommended by CAS 
240 – The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of 
Financial Statements.  Based on these procedures, we have not 
encountered any illegal activities or fraudulent events with respect to the 
District. 

Significant 
Events 

As of the date of this letter, we have not identified any significant events 
which we believe should be brought to your attention. 

Significant 
Accounting 
Policies 

The District’s significant accounting policies are listed in the financial 
statements.  We believe management’s selection of accounting policies is 
appropriate under Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
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Estimates Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements and 
are based on management’s current judgments.  These judgments are 
based on knowledge and experience about past and current events, 
assumptions about future events and interpretations of the financial 
reporting standards. 

Our comments on the significant estimates included in the financial 
statements are included on page 9 of this report. 

Materiality, Audit 
Adjustments and 
Unadjusted 
Differences 

Our final materiality level of $1,447,000 changed marginally from our 
planning materiality of $1,370,000 in our audit Planning Report dated 
November 23, 2016. 

There are no unadjusted misstatements for the year ended December 31, 
2016.   

There were no year-end audit adjustments.  

Disclosures There are no material omissions with respect to the disclosures in the 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 that we have 
noted. 

Independence We confirmed our independence to the Mayor and Council for the year 
ended December 31, 2016 in our Planning Report dated November 23, 2016.  
We confirm that we are still independent as of the date of this letter. 

Representation 
Letter 

A draft version of the representation letter to be signed by management is 
included in Appendix B. 

Conclusion We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the financial statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2016 once the outstanding items referred 
to above are satisfactorily resolved and the financial statements are 
approved the Council. 
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MATERIALITY 
Misstatements, including omitted financial statement disclosures, are considered to be material if 
they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.   
 
We communicated to you our planning materiality levels in our Planning Report to the Mayor and 
Council.  Our materiality levels have changed slightly from our audit Planning Report presented to 
the Mayor and Council on November 23, 2016.  Final materiality was $1,447,000 based on 
approximately 2% of normalized revenues.  This increase from planning materiality of $1,370,000 
resulted from differences between estimated and actual annual results for the year ended 
December 31, 2016. 
 
There were no adjusted or unadjusted misstatements identified during our audit which we 
determined to be above “clearly trivial”. Misstatements are considered to be clearly trivial for 
purposes of the audit when they are inconsequential both individually and in aggregate.  
 

AUDIT FINDINGS 
Based on our knowledge of the District’s operations, our past experience in this area, and 
knowledge gained from management and the Council, we have identified the following significant 
risks; those risks of material misstatement that, in our judgment, require special audit 
consideration. 
 
Significant risks arise mainly because of the complexity of the accounting rules, the extent of 
estimation and judgment involved in the valuation of these financial statement areas, and the 
existence of new accounting pronouncements that affect them.   
 
As part of our ongoing communications with you, we are required to have a discussion on our views 
about significant qualitative aspects of the District’s accounting practices, including accounting 
policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. 
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AUDIT RISK AREAS 
 
Management Override of Controls 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

Management is in a unique 
position to perpetrate fraud 
because of management’s 
ability to directly or 
indirectly manipulate 
accounting records, and 
prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise 
appear to be operating 
effectively. 
 
[This risk is required for all 
audits pursuant to 
Canadian audit standards.] 

 We tested the 
appropriateness of journal 
entries recorded in the 
general ledger and other 
adjustments made in the 
preparation of the financial 
statements. 

All audit testing in this area 
was executed as planned and 
no issues were noted. 

 
Revenue Recognition 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

Accounting standards have 
changed in this area and are 
complex and open to 
interpretation. There is a 
risk that revenue may be 
incorrectly deferred into 
future periods. 

 Verified a sample of 
deferred revenue balances 
by examining supporting 
documentation to validate 
the accounting treatment. 

Reviewed the agreements 
to ensure that revenue is 
being recognized in 
accordance with latest 
revenue recognition 
standards. 

Reviewed minutes to 
determine whether any 
contributions received 
should be deferred and 
whether any grants had not 
yet been recorded. 

All audit testing in this area 
was executed as planned and 
no issues were noted. 
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Employee Future Benefits 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

The calculation of the 
estimated liability 
associated with employee 
future benefits is complex 
and relies upon many 
significant assumptions. 

 We reviewed assumptions 
used by the actuary in the 
actuarial report. 

 

All audit testing in this area 
was executed as planned and 
no issues were noted. 

 
Landfill Liability 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

A significant liability that is 
calculated based on 
management assumptions 
and engineering reports. 
Due to the nature of the 
high level of estimates 
required and the possibility 
of new information 
becoming available this 
liability calculation is 
considered a risk area. 

 We reviewed calculations 
related to the liability 
recorded, as well as 
reviewed third party 
engineering reports.  We 
also performed an audit of 
the significant assumptions 
used in the calculations. 

All audit testing in this area 
was executed as planned and 
no issues were noted. 

 
Cash and Investments 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

Due to its nature, cash and 
investments are almost 
always considered to be a 
risk area in any audit. 

 We reviewed the year end 
reconciliations and 
obtained third party 
confirmations.  

All audit testing in this area 
was executed as planned and 
no issues were noted. 

 
Staff Salaries 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

A significant single type of 
expenditure that cover 
many employees and 
departments. As a 
municipality, this figure is 
often of particular interest 
to financial statement users 
(taxpayers). 

 We applied computer audit 
testing to analyze all 
payroll transactions in the 
year. We performed system 
testing, tests of controls 
and analytical review of 
staff salaries.  

All audit testing in this area 
was executed as planned and 
no issues were noted. 
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Tangible Capital Assets and Accumulated Amortization 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

It is important that the 
useful lives of tangible 
capital assets owned by the 
District are appropriate and 
remain accurate. This 
involves a high level of 
estimation and coordination 
of the finance department 
with other departments. 

 We performed tests of 
control for appropriate 
authorization of purchases 
combined with substantive 
testing of additions and 
disposals and amortization 
calculations.  Useful lives 
of existing assets were 
reviewed. 

All audit testing in this area 
was executed as planned and 
no errors were noted. 

 
Contaminated Sites 
 

Risk  Approach  Results 

Due to the complexity of 
this new standard, there is 
risk that not all of the 
contaminated sites are 
identified, estimated and 
disclosed correctly. 

 Reviewed management’s 
assessment of possible 
contaminated sites and 
assessed for plausibility.  

All audit testing in this area 
was executed as planned and 
no liability was noted. 

 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
 
Management is responsible for determining the District’s significant accounting policies. The choice 
between accounting policy alternatives can have a significant effect on the financial position and 
results of the organization. The application of those policies often involves significant estimates 
and judgments by management.  Based on the audit work that we have performed, it is our opinion 
that the estimates in the financial statements are reasonable and the disclosures relating to 
accounting estimates are in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
 
UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES 
 
There were no significant unadjusted differences or disclosure omissions identified through the 
course of our audit engagement.   
 
AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS 
 
There were no year-end audit adjustments.   
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MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS 
 
During the course of our audit, management made certain representations to us. These 
representations were verbal or written and therefore explicit, or they were implied through the 
financial statements.  Management provided representations in response to specific queries from 
us, as well as unsolicited representations.  Such representations were part of the evidence gathered 
by us to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base our audit opinion.  These 
representations were documented in our audit working papers through memoranda of discussions 
with management, as well as by written representations received from management.  A copy of 
the representation letter we have requested from management is included in Appendix B of this 
report. 
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FRAUD DISCUSSION 
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards require us to discuss fraud risk with the Council on 
an annual basis.  Further to our discussion in our Planning Report dated November 23, 2016, we 
have prepared the following comments: 
 

 
Required Discussion 

  

BDO Response 
 Question to Council 

Details of existing 
oversight processes 
with regards to fraud. 

 Based on our discussions during the 
planning of our audit, the Council’s 
oversight processes include: 

• Council charters; 
 

• Discussions at Council meetings; 
 

• Review of related party 
transactions; and 

 
• Consideration of tone at the top. 

 Are there any new 
processes or changes 
in existing processes 
relating to fraud 
since the date of our 
previous discussions, 
that we should be 
aware of? 

Knowledge of actual, 
suspected or alleged 
fraud. 

 Currently, we are not aware of any 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud. 

 Are you aware of any 
instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged 
fraud affecting the 
District? 

 
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR DETECTING FRAUD 
 
We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by error or fraud.  
 
The likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the 
likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from error, because fraud may involve 
collusion as well as sophisticated and carefully organized schedules designed to conceal it. 
 
The scope of the work performed was substantially the same as that described in our Planning 
Report to the Mayor and Council dated November 23, 2016. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS 
During the course of our audit, we performed the following procedures with respect to the District’s 
internal control environment: 

• Documented operating systems to assess the design and implementation of control activities 
that were relevant to the audit. 

• Discussed and considered potential audit risks. 
The results of these procedures were considered in determining the extent and nature of 
substantive audit testing required. 
 
We are required to report to you in writing, significant deficiencies in internal control that we have 
identified during the audit.  A significant deficiency is defined as a deficiency or combination of 
deficiencies in internal control that, in the auditor's professional judgment, is of sufficient 
importance to merit the attention of those charged with governance.  
 
As the purpose of the audit is for us to express an opinion on the District’s financial statements, 
our audit cannot be expected to disclose all matters that may be of interest to you and, as a result, 
the matters reported may not be exhaustive.  As part of our work, we considered internal control 
relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such that we were able to design 
appropriate audit procedures.  This work was not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control. 
 
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL 
 

Deficiency  Issue and Impact 

None noted.  None noted. 
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OTHER REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 
Professional standards require independent auditors to communicate with those charged with 
governance certain matters in relation to an audit.  In addition to the points communicated within 
this letter, the table below summarizes these additional required communications. 

 
 
Required Communication 

Audit Planning 
Presentation 

Audit 
Results 

Presentation 

 
Auditor 

Comments 
  

1. Our responsibilities under 
Canadian Auditing Standards 
(CAS) 

  Included in our 
engagement letter 
dated November 
23, 2016. 

2. Our audit strategy and audit scope  Included in our 
Planning Report 
dated November 
23, 2016. 

3. Fraud risk factors  Included in our 
Planning Report 
dated November 
23, 2016. 

4. Going concern matters  None. 
5. Significant estimates or judgments  See Page 6  
6. Audit adjustments  None. 
7. Unadjusted differences  None. 
8. Omitted disclosures  None noted. 
9. Disagreements with management  There were no 

disagreements with 
management. 

10. Consultations with other 
accountants or experts 

 No external 
experts were 
consulted during 
this engagement. 

11. Major issues discussed with 
management in regards to 
retention 

 None. 

12. Significant difficulties encountered 
during the audit 

 No significant 
difficulties were 
encountered during 
our audit. 

13. Significant deficiencies in internal 
control 

 No significant 
deficiencies were 
noted. 

14. Material written communication 
between BDO and management 

 No material 
written 
communications 
were noted. 

15. Any relationships which may affect 
our independence 

 
 

  No independence
issues noted. 
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Required Communication 

Audit Planning 
Presentation 

Audit 
Results 

Presentation 

 
Auditor 

Comments 
16. Any illegal acts identified during 

the audit 
 No illegal activities 

identified through 
the audit process. 

17. Any fraud or possible fraudulent 
acts identified during the audit 

  No fraud identified 
through the audit 
process. 

18. Significant transactions with 
related parties not consistent with 
ordinary business operations 

 None noted. 

19. Non-compliance with laws or 
regulations identified during  the 
audit 

 No legal or 
regulatory non-
compliance 
matters were 
noted as part of 
our audit. 

20. Limitations of scope over our audit, 
if any 

 None. 

21. Written representations made by 
management 

 See Appendix B.

22. Any modifications to our opinion, if 
required 

 Please see our 
draft independent 
auditor’s report 
included in 
Appendix A.  
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BDO RESOURCES 
 
BDO is one of Canada’s largest accounting services firms providing assurance and accounting, 
taxation, financial advisory, risk advisory, financial recovery and consulting services to a variety of 
publicly traded and privately held companies. 
 
BDO serves its clients through 105 offices across Canada.  As a member firm of BDO International 
Limited, BDO serves its multinational clients through a global network of over 1,100 offices in more 
than 100 countries.  Commitment to knowledge and best practice sharing ensures that expertise is 
easily shared across our global network and common methodologies and information technology 
ensures efficient and effective service delivery to our clients. 
 
Outlined below is a summary of certain BDO resources which may be of interest to Council. 
 
PUBLICATIONS  
 
PSAS New or Amended Standards Checklist for December 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017 Year Ends
PSAS Update - September 2016 

 
TAX BULLETINS, ALERTS AND NEWSLETTERS 
 

BDO’s national tax department issues a number of bulletins, alerts and newsletters relating to 
corporate federal, personal, commodity, transfer pricing and international tax matters.   
 
For additional information on tax matters and links to archived tax publications, please refer to 
the following link: Tax Library | BDO Canada.  
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APPENDIX A – Draft Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Mayor and Council of the District of Mission 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the District of Mission, which comprise 
the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2016, and the Statements of Operations 
and Accumulated Surplus, Changes in Net Financial Assets and Cash Flows for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position 
of the District of Mission as at December 31, 2016, and the results of its operations, changes in net 
financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 
 
 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants 

Vancouver, British Columbia 
May 8, 2017  

19



 
 

District of Mission     17 

 

APPENDIX B - Representation Letter 
 
May 8, 2017  

BDO Canada LLP 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
600 Cathedral Place 
925 West Georgia Street 
Vancouver, BC  V6C 3L2 
 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
the District of Mission (the “District”) for the year ended December 31, 2016 for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material 
respects, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards: 

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial Statements 

• We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 
November 23, 2016, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian 
public sector accounting standards; in particular, the financial statements are fairly presented 
in accordance therewith. 

• Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at 
fair value, are reasonable.  

• Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

• All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Canadian public 
sector accounting standards require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

• The financial statements of the District use appropriate accounting policies that have been 
properly disclosed and consistently applied. 

Information Provided 

• We have provided you with: 

– access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 
the financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters; 

– additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and 

– unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 

• We are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls to 
prevent, detect and correct fraud and error, and have communicated to you all deficiencies in 
internal control of which we are aware. 

• All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements. 
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• We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial 
statements. 

• We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Fraud and Error 

• We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

• We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are 
aware of and that affects the entity and involves: 

– management; 

– employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

– others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

• We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, 
analysts, regulators, or others. 

Existence, Completeness and Valuation of Specific Financial Statement Balances  

• All assets, wherever located, to which the District had satisfactory title at the year end, have 
been fairly stated and recorded in the financial statements. There are no liens or encumbrances 
on the entity’s assets. 

• All financial instruments have been appropriately recognized and measured in accordance with 
Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

• Significant assumptions used in arriving at the fair value of financial instruments are reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances. 

• The inventories as set out in the financial statements represent all of the inventories to which 
the District held title as at the Statement of Financial Position date. Inventories do not include 
any goods consigned to the entity, merchandise billed to customers or any items for which the 
liability has not been provided in the books. 

• The employee future benefit costs, assets and obligation have been determined, accounted for 
and disclosed in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.  The source data 
and plan provisions provided are complete and accurate.  The plans included in the valuation 
are complete.  The determination of the discount rate and the use of specific actuarial 
assumptions are our best estimate assumptions.  We feel that the extrapolations are accurate 
and have properly reflected the effects of changes and events occurring subsequent to the most 
recent valuation that had a material effect on the extrapolation. 

General Representations  

• The nature of all material uncertainties have been appropriately measured and disclosed in the 
financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the estimate 
will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the financial 
statements.  
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• There were no direct contingencies or provisions (including those associated with guarantees or 
indemnification provisions), unusual contractual obligations nor any substantial commitments, 
whether oral or written, other than in the ordinary course of business, which would materially 
affect the financial statements or financial position of the entity, except as disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

• We confirm that there are no derivatives or off-balance sheet financial instruments held at year 
end that have not been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements. 

• We have disclosed to you all significant customers and/or suppliers of the District who 
individually represent a significant volume of business with the entity. We are of the opinion 
that the volume of business (sales, services, purchases, borrowing and lending) done by the 
District with any one party is not of sufficient magnitude that discontinuance would have a 
material negative effect on the ongoing operations of the entity. 

• There have been no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities. 

• We confirm that operating segments are appropriately identified and disclosed in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

• No significant matters, other than those disclosed in the financial statements, have arisen that 
would require a restatement of the comparative financial statements. 

• We have made the following additional significant representations to you during the course of 
your audit which we understand that you have relied upon:  

– All tangible capital assets and inventory have been recorded and additions for the year are 
complete and accurate.  Amortization based on the expected useful life of the tangible 
capital asset and residual value is our best estimate for the consumption of a portion of 
the tangible capital asset for the year.  Where the value of any tangible capital asset has 
been impaired, an appropriate provision has been made in the financial statements or has 
otherwise been disclosed to you.   

– Management has assessed its potential liabilities under the Contaminated Sites standard 
including sites that are no longer in productive use and sites for which the District accepts 
responsibility. Overall, there were no such sites that had contamination in excess of an 
environmental standard which required remediation at this time, therefore no liability was 
recognized at December 31, 2016. 

Other Representations Where the Situation Exists 

• We have informed you of all known actual or possible litigation and claims, whether or not
they have been discussed with legal counsel. Since there are no actual, outstanding or possible
litigation and claims, no disclosure is required in the financial statements. 

Yours truly, 

_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Signature Position 

______________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Signature Position 
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APPENDIX C – Management Letter 
 

Direct Line: 604-443-4716 
E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca 

 
April 26, 2017 
 
Mr. Kris Boland, CPA, CGA, Director of Finance  
District of Mission 
8645 Stave Lake Street 
Mission, BC   V2V 4L9 
 
 
Dear Mr. Boland: 
 
As your external auditors, we are engaged to provide an audit opinion on your year-end financial 
statements.  An external audit requires testing of transactions and balances and review of those 
internal control systems upon which we may place reliance.  A positive opinion on the financial 
statements does not necessarily mean that your internal control systems are all operating 
effectively.  This is because we review only those internal control systems where we feel that 
failure in those systems could result in a material error on the financial statements.  With those 
systems that we do review, our focus is on the assertions necessary to meet our financial statement 
audit objectives. 
 
Our review of systems, transactions and balances as well as discussions with staff at various levels 
gives us a unique insight into your operations.  While conducting this work we make note of items 
that come to our attention where we feel that improvement could be made or alternatives could 
be considered.  We are fortunate in that we work with a great number of clients and observe a 
wide variety of processes.  We see firsthand any procedures that are emerging as best practices.   
 
As matters come to our attention, we make note of these for subsequent follow-up.  For minor 
matters we discuss directly with the staff involved.  More important matters are brought forward 
in this letter (known as a management letter). 
 
It is worth noting that we have management letter comments for virtually all audits of all clients.  
The existence of points does not mean that there are significant problems with your systems or 
staff.  They are just recommendations to make good systems better.   
 
Status of Prior Year Recommendations 
 

1.  Conflict of Interest Policy – Go Beyond the Legal Requirements 
 

Observation 
 

We noted last year that the Financial Disclosure Act requires that members of Council as 
well as employees appointed by Council (generally senior management) make written 
disclosure of their corporate holdings, business interests, other organizations which may 
compensate them, and their interests in lands. These disclosures must be updated yearly. 

 
Recommendation 
 
We recommended that the District consider going beyond the baseline requirements to 
enhance openness and transparency. Best practice would require that an in-house conflict 
of interest policy be developed and regularly reviewed.  
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2016 update 
 
We are pleased to note that a new Standards of Conduct for Employees policy was 
approved by the Chief Administrative Officer and presented to Council in April 2017. 
 

Current year observation 
 

1. Tendering Process 
 

Observation 
 
During our audit fieldwork, we noted that there is no formal procedure documented in the 
tender awarding process. When tenders are submitted they are reviewed by the purchasing 
manager, however, there is no sign off or review notes on the document indicating that 
the tender has been examined. In the purchasing policy there is also no mention of lead 
time (the time period a tender needs to be outstanding before it closes).  
 
Recommendation 
 
To ensure all the tenders submitted are properly examined and evaluated, we recommend 
adding a procedure for the purchasing manager to document the review of tenders. We 
also recommend adding a lead time requirement for the tendering process to ensure 
sufficient time was given for bid submission.  
 
Management Comments 
 
Management appreciates this recommendation, and staff will formalize and improve 
documentation of the tender process accordingly. 
 
It is correct that the District’s purchasing policy does not speak to the tender award 
process. However, we do have a bid opening form that we use to document all 
competitions. Two witnesses (always including one from Purchasing) open the submissions 
for every Tender. District staff record any relevant notes or exceptions on the bid opening 
form. To improve this process, staff will update the bid opening form to document the 
date a submission was reviewed and by whom. Furthermore, the tender awarding process 
will be formalized in a written procedure.  
 
Regarding the “lead time” for the tendering process, nearly all competitions remain live 
for a minimum of 3 weeks, and sometimes as long as 6 weeks depending on the complexity 
of the project. On the rare occasion that we have had a live time less than 3 weeks, staff 
have approached known bidders to confirm that this is realistic and offers enough time to 
respond. Again, live times are handled in practice, but are not documented in a procedure. 
Staff will formalize tender lead times in a written procedure. 
 

2. Allowances for Members of Legislative Assemblies and Certain Municipal Officers      
 
Currently employees who are reimbursed for expenses incurred by them in the course of 
carrying out their employment duties are generally not required to include such amounts 
in income as taxable benefits, while those who receive non-accountable allowances are 
generally required to do so. However, elected members of provincial and territorial 
legislative assemblies and officers of incorporated municipalities, elected officers of 
municipal utilities boards, commissions, corporations, or similar bodies, and members of 
public or separate school boards or of similar bodies governing a school district are 
currently entitled to exclude non-accountable allowances from income. The 2017 Budget 
proposes to repeal this exemption by 2019. 
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Recommendation 
 
We recommend that management begin reviewing the Council allowance/expense policies 
and determine if update is required in preparation for the planned repeal.  This is important 
in order to avoid detrimental personal income tax consequences to councilors. 
 
Management Comments 
 
Staff will monitor the situation accordingly for the potential 2019 implementation.  
 

This communication is prepared solely for the information of management and those charged with 
governance and is not intended for any other purposes.  We accept no responsibility to a third party 
who uses this communication. 
 
We would like to express our appreciation for the co-operation and assistance which we received 
from the entire finance department during the course of the audit.  
 
We shall be pleased to discuss with you further any matters mentioned in this letter at your 
convenience. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
Bill Cox, FCPA, FCA 
Partner through a corporation 
BDO Canada LLP 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
 
BC/mkn 
 
cc: Mayor and Council 
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File:   05-1830-20 

DATE:   May 8, 2017 
TO:   Mayor and Council 
FROM: Kris Boland, Director of Finance 
SUBJECT:  Draft 2016 Financial Statements 
ATTACHMENT(S): Appendix A – Draft 2016 Financial Statements 
 Appendix B – 2016 Budget Variances 
 Appendix C – Annual Surplus Reconciliation 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Council consider and resolve: 
That the District of Mission’s draft 2016 financial statements, attached as Appendix A to the Director 
of Finance’s report dated May 8, 2017 entitled Draft 2016 Financial Statements, be approved. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
The District of Mission’s draft 2016 financial statements, including the draft audit opinion, are attached 
as Appendix A. In accordance with audit standards, Council is required to approve the financial 
statements before the auditors issue their final audit report. The financial statements are also required 
to be approved by Council prior to May 15th each year, as per Section 167 of the Community Charter.  
A summary of the District’s 2016 financial results and financial position is included in this report. 
The District’s accrual-basis annual surplus for 2016 as per the financial statements was $14,745,784, 
and the general operating fund cash-basis surplus was $1,615,677 for the year.  A reconciliation of 
the accrual-basis surplus and the cash-basis surplus is included in Appendix C of this report. As 
detailed in the Deputy Treasurer/Collector’s report to Council dated April 3, 2017 entitled Quarterly 
Financial Reporting – December 31, 2016, the cash-basis surplus was as a result of several budget 
savings that occurred in 2016, including a surplus of approximately $250,000 in the RCMP contract, 
and additional fees collected as a result of increased development activity. 

PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this report is to present the District’s draft 2016 financial statements, including the 
draft audit opinion for Council’s consideration.  

BACKGROUND: 
The District of Mission’s draft 2016 financial statements, including the draft audit opinion, are attached 
as Appendix A. In accordance with audit standards, Council is required to approve the financial 
statements before the auditors issue their final audit report. Financial statements that have been 
audited and signed by the Mayor and the District’s Financial Officer are required to be submitted to 
the Ministry of Community, Sport and Cultural Development by May 15, 2017, in accordance with 
Section 167 of the Community Charter.  
A summary of the District’s draft 2016 financial statements, including financial results and financial 
position follows in this report. 
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DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:  
The District’s annual surplus for 2016 as per the financial statements was $14,745,784. This amount 
is calculated using the accrual basis of accounting, and is similar to net income for a business. It does 
not include certain items such as principal payments on debt and transfers to reserves, which poses a 
problem for the District’s annual budgeting process from a financial planning perspective, as well as 
with balanced budget legislation.  As a result, the District prepares a “balanced” cash-based budget, 
in addition to an accrual-based budget. Using the cash-basis, the general operating fund surplus for 
the year was $1,615,677 (the general operating fund includes municipal services that are primarily 
funded by property taxation). The general operating fund surplus doesn’t include any surpluses 
related to self-funding District operations such as the water, sewer and waste management utilities, or 
the Forestry Enterprise, as these surpluses are automatically transferred to their respective capital 
reserves. A reconciliation of the accrual-basis surplus and the cash-basis surplus is included in the 
attached Appendix C.  
Appendix B is a summary of the details in the Deputy Treasurer/Collector’s report to Council dated 
April 3, 2017 entitled Quarterly Financial Reporting – December 31, 2016.  The cash-basis surplus 
was as a result of several budget savings that occurred in 2016, including a surplus of approximately 
$250,000 in the RCMP contract, and additional fees collected as a result of increased development 
activity. The majority of these savings are not expected to be ongoing occurrences; therefore no 
corresponding budget adjustments were made in the 2017 budget.  
A summary of the District’s draft 2016 financial statements follows.  
 
Audit Opinion 
The District’s external auditors have concluded their audit testing and have issued their opinion that 
the District’s draft 2016 financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects.  
 
Statement of Financial Position 
The statement of financial position, which is similar to a balance sheet, summarizes the District’s 
assets and liabilities, the net of which results in accumulated surplus. The components of 
accumulated surplus are detailed in Note 12 to the financial statements which includes operating 
surplus and reserve fund balances, and the amount invested in capital assets (i.e. infrastructure, 
facilities, equipment and land).  Assets are broken down into two categories: 

• Financial assets: includes assets which are available to discharge existing liabilities. Examples 
include cash, accounts receivable, and investments.  

• Non-financial assets: includes assets that are held for use in the provision of services and 
have useful lives extending beyond one year. The majority of non-financial assets are tangible 
capital assets, such as roads, water and sewer infrastructure that are used to provide 
municipal services.  

At the end of 2016, the District had net financial assets of approximately $55.2 million, which means 
financial assets were greater than liabilities. This represents a $3.8 million increase in net financial 
assets over the prior year. Further details of the change in net financial assets can be found in the 
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets.  
The District had non-financial assets of about $450.6 million at the end of 2016, the majority of which 
is the historical cost of tangible capital assets, less accumulated amortization. This represents an 
increase in non-financial assets of approximately $11 million over the prior year, primarily as a result 
of tangible capital assets acquired during the year, less amortization. The District’s net financial 
assets, together with its non-financial assets, contributed to its overall accumulated surplus position of 
approximately $505.8 million at the end of 2016.  
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Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus  
This statement, which is similar to an income statement, summarizes the District’s revenues and 
expenses for the year, the net of which results in the accrual-basis annual surplus. The annual 
surplus is added to the prior year’s accumulated surplus, to arrive at the ending accumulated surplus 
for the year. Based on total revenues of approximately $76.1 million and expenses of approximately 
$61.4 million during the year, the annual surplus per the accrual-basis of accounting of approximately 
$14.7 million is shown in this statement. The ending accumulated surplus position reflected in this 
statement of approximately $505.8 million corresponds with the accumulated surplus shown on the 
Statement of Financial Position. 
 
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets 
This statement adjusts the annual surplus for transactions involving non-financial assets, to arrive at 
the increase in net financial assets for the year. The net increase in financial assets is then added to 
the net financial assets at the beginning of the year to arrive at the year-end balance for net financial 
assets. The District’s net financial assets at the end of 2016 were approximately $55.2 million, which 
corresponds with the net financial assets figure in the Statement of Financial Position. 
 
Statement of Cash Flows 
This statement summarizes the sources and usage of cash throughout the year, in the categories of 
operating, investing, financing, and capital transactions. The change in cash and cash equivalents is 
reflected in the final cash position shown, which reconciles with the cash and cash equivalents 
balance shown on the Statement of Financial Position. The District’s cash and cash equivalents 
balance at the end of 2016 was approximately $43.5 million, a significant portion of which are held in 
highly liquid investments earning reasonable rates of return; see Note 4 in the financial statements for 
more details on cash and cash equivalents.  
 
Notes to the Financial Statements  
The Notes to the Financial Statements reflect significant accounting policies, the details of certain 
amounts shown in the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Operations and Accumulated 
Surplus, as well as other pertinent information that helps to explain the financial statements. For 
example, a breakdown of the investments balance shown in the Statement of Financial Position is 
included in Note 5.   
Note 12 shows the detailed composition of the District’s $505.8 million accumulated surplus, which 
consists primarily of amounts invested in tangible capital assets, as well as operating surplus 
balances and reserve fund balances.  
 
Schedule 1 – Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets 
Schedule 1 reflects the historical cost of tangible capital assets and the changes in the balance of 
these assets as a result of additions, disposals and amortization expense. The District had 
approximately $592.3 million (historical cost) of tangible capital assets at the end of 2016, with 
accumulated amortization of about $143.0 million, for a net book value of tangible capital assets of 
about $449.3 million. Total additions to tangible capital assets were $19.5 million in 2016, of which 
$8.5 million were infrastructure assets received from developers through property development 
activities during the year.  
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Schedule 2 – Statement of Operations by Segment 
Schedule 2 shows revenues and expenses for the year broken down into functional areas (i.e. 
segments).  The total revenues and expenses for all of the segments balance to the Statement of 
Operations and Accumulated Surplus, as does the total annual surplus. Details of the functions 
included in each segment can be found in Note 17. 
 
Schedule 3 – Long-Term Debt 
Schedule 3 provides details on the District’s various long-term debt issues that are outstanding, 
including annual debt servicing requirements for the next five years. The District had approximately 
$5.65 million of external debt outstanding at the end of 2016, consisting of amounts borrowed for the 
construction of Fire Station #1 in 1998, and the construction/renovation of the leisure centre, sports-
park and water park in 2004 through 2006. There is no debt outstanding for the District’s water and 
sewer utilities.  
 
Schedule 4 – Internal Debt/Transfers Outstanding  
Schedule 4 lists all of the District’s outstanding internal debt (i.e. borrowing from reserves) including 
advances, adjustments and payments. The outstanding internal debt of $3.1 million as at  
December 31, 2016, is entirely related to borrowing for Development Cost Charge (DCC) projects. In 
other words, other reserves have had to prepay for certain DCC projects, because insufficient DCC 
funds were collected prior to acquisition or construction of those DCC projects. The intent is that as 
DCC funds are collected from future development, these collections are used to pay back the lending 
reserve funds. No additional internal loans for DCC projects were required during 2016.  
Paying for growth related DCC projects prior to actual growth occurring is an ongoing challenge. It is 
important to adhere to a solid pay back plan if and when funds are advanced for DCC projects. 
Difficulties with payback arise when DCC collections are slow and when the funding of current DCC 
projects takes precedence over the payback of existing internal loans.  
During 2016, the District repaid about $343,000 of internal loans from DCCs collected during the year, 
resulting in an approximate 10% decrease in the total amount of internal loans outstanding from the 
prior year. 
 
2016 Cash-Basis Surplus and Variance Explanations 
The attached Appendix B provides an explanation of the various departmental revenue and expense 
variances, which in turn explains the District’s $1,615,677 general operating fund cash-basis annual 
surplus. Also included in Appendix B are the year-end results for waste management, water, sewer, 
equipment and forestry, all of which have their surplus of revenues over expenses transferred directly 
to their capital reserves.  
The cash-basis annual surplus is different than the surplus shown on the Statement of Operations 
and Accumulated Surplus, which is prepared on an accrual-basis in accordance with accounting 
standards. For example, current year tax revenue is used to pay principal payments on debt, and no 
cash-basis surplus arises from this transaction. However, under the accrual-basis, tax revenue is 
recorded as revenue, while principal payments on debt result in a reduction in liabilities; therefore, tax 
revenue is included on the Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus, while principal 
payments on debt are reducing debt on the Statement of Financial Position. This differing treatment of 
principal payments on debt is an example of how the cash-basis and accrual-basis annual surplus 
figures differ.   
A reconciliation of the two surplus amounts is included in the attached Appendix C. 
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. Staff will report back to Council 
to recommend if any transfers from accumulated surplus to other reserve funds should be considered.  

COMMUNICATION: 
The District’s audited 2016 financial statements will be forwarded to the Ministry of Community, Sport 
and Cultural Development, prior to the legislated deadline of May 15, 2017. These financial 
statements will also form part of the District’s 2016 Annual Report, which will be included on a public 
Council meeting agenda prior to the June 30, 2017 legislated deadline.  

SIGN-OFFS:  
 

 
Kris Boland, Director of Finance 

 

 
Reviewed by:  
Kerri Onken, Deputy Treasurer/Collector 

Comment from the Chief Administrative Officer: 
Reviewed 
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 Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

 
To the Mayor and Council of the District of Mission 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the District of Mission, which comprise the 
Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2016, and the Statements of Operations and 
Accumulated Surplus, Changes in Net Financial Assets and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the 
District of Mission as at December 31, 2016, and the results of its operations, changes in net financial assets, 
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

 
 
 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants 

Vancouver, British Columbia 
May 8, 2017 

Appendix A
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District of Mission
Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting

December 31, 2016

The accompanying financial statements of the District of Mission (the District) are the responsibility of the District's
management and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles for local governments, as established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of The
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of significant accounting policies are described in Note
1 to the financial statements. The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates
based on management's judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot
be finalized with certainty until future periods. 

The District maintains systems of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the financial
statements. These systems are  monitored and evaluated by management. 

Council meets with management and the external auditors to review the financial statements and discuss any
significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the financial statements. 

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Canada LLP, independent external auditors appointed by the
District. The accompanying Independent Auditor's Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their
examination and their opinion of the District's financial statements. 

Ron Poole Kris Boland CPA, CGA

Chief Administrative Officer Director of Finance

 Date: May 8, 2017
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District of Mission
Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2016

2016 2015

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 43,474,223 $ 33,663,957

Receivables (Note 3) 7,041,209 6,765,820

Inventories held for resale 115,760 246,083

Loans receivable (Note 4) 609,619 103,439

Investments (Note 5) 38,839,744 41,830,832

90,080,555 82,610,131

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 7) 11,902,124 10,628,722

Deposits 3,792,034 2,969,019

Long-term debt (Note 8, Schedule 3) 5,651,396 6,222,977

Deferred revenue 3,865,578 3,881,403

Restricted revenue (Note 9) 8,416,454 6,188,931

Employee future benefits (Note 10) 1,290,994 1,341,345

34,918,580 31,232,397

Net Financial Assets 55,161,975 51,377,734

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible capital assets (Schedule 1) 449,266,948 438,574,914

Inventories of supplies and land 882,765 860,905

Prepaid expenses 486,666 239,017

450,636,379 439,674,836

Accumulated Surplus  (Note 12) $ 505,798,354 $ 491,052,570

Kris Boland CPA, CGA Randy Hawes
Director of Finance Mayor

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.
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District of Mission
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Budget
(Note 15) 2016 2015

Revenues

Taxation (Note 13) $ 29,936,730 $ 30,259,605 $ 29,063,443

Sales of services and regulatory fees 26,531,822 30,550,936 27,768,999

Government transfers (Note 14) 2,778,870 3,271,272 3,028,736

Amortization of restricted revenue (Note 9) 567,071 383,834 1,136,039

Investment income 1,021,383 1,498,979 1,342,877

Other revenue 1,531,581 1,697,969 1,959,266

Developer contributions in-kind related to capital 3,903,159 8,462,350 4,300,708

Total Revenues 66,270,616 76,124,945 68,600,068

Expenses

Protective services 15,177,708 15,192,547 14,896,336

Engineering and public works 8,178,430 7,813,918 8,904,708

Parks, recreation and cultural services 7,218,595 7,768,711 7,369,357

Administration and finance 4,469,638 4,875,031 4,734,178

Transit services 2,737,710 2,701,230 2,804,284

General government and fiscal services 2,263,333 1,745,106 383,488

Development services 2,120,280 2,243,305 1,944,308

Library 1,405,345 1,419,474 1,379,432

Cemetery 238,540 213,008 255,857

Drainage utility 959,412 1,929,944 704,111

Sewer utility 3,594,492 3,566,093 4,120,177

Waste management utility 4,081,300 4,357,491 3,972,069

Water utility 3,861,312 3,333,808 4,037,771

Forest enterprise 3,919,513 4,219,495 4,427,854

Total Expenses 60,225,608 61,379,161 59,933,930

Annual Surplus 6,045,008 14,745,784 8,666,138

Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 491,052,570 491,052,570 482,386,432

Accumulated Surplus, End of Year $ 497,097,578 $ 505,798,354 $ 491,052,570

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.
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District of Mission
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Budget 2016 2015

Annual Surplus $ 6,045,008 $ 14,745,784 8,666,138

Acquisition of tangible capital assets, including developer
contributions in-kind (8,804,005) (19,476,124) (9,992,260)

Amortization of tangible capital assets 8,208,068 8,438,656 8,234,241

Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 103,746 921,087

Net sale proceeds, tangible capital assets - 241,689 470,769

5,449,071 4,053,751 8,299,975

Change in inventories of supplies and land - (21,860) (191,372)

Change in prepaid expenses - (247,650) (73,225)

- (269,510) (264,597)

Increase in Net Financial Assets 5,449,071 3,784,241 8,035,378

Net Financial Assets, Beginning of Year 51,377,734 51,377,734 43,342,356

Net Financial Assets, End of Year $ 56,826,805 $ 55,161,975 $ 51,377,734

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.
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District of Mission
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2016

2016 2015

Cash Flows from Operating Transactions

Annual surplus $ 14,745,784 $ 8,666,138

Items Not Involving Cash

Amortization of tangible capital assets 8,438,656 8,234,241

Amortization of restricted revenue (383,834) (1,136,039)

Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 103,746 921,087

Developer contributions in-kind related to capital (8,462,350) (4,300,708)

Change in employee future benefits (50,351) (29,475)

Change in Non-Cash Operating Items

Receivables (275,389) (231,351)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,273,402 623,369

Deposits 823,015 702,737

Deferred revenue (15,826) (93,312)

Inventories held for resale 130,323 25,681

Loans receivable (506,180) 7,042

Inventories of supplies and land (21,860) (191,372)

Prepaid expenses (247,650) (73,225)

Net Change in Cash from Operating Transactions 15,551,486 13,124,813

Cash Flows from Investing Transactions

Net change in investments 2,991,088 (7,636,888)

Cash Flows from Financing Transactions

Long-term debt principal repaid (571,581) (545,160)

Restricted revenue collections and interest earnings 2,611,357 2,280,224

Net Change in Cash from Financing Transactions 2,039,776 1,735,064

Cash Flows from Capital Transactions

Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets 241,689 470,769

Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (11,013,773) (5,691,554)

Net Change in Cash from Capital Transactions (10,772,084) (5,220,785)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,810,266 2,002,204

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 33,663,957 31,661,753

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 43,474,223 $ 33,663,957

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The District of Mission (the "District") is a municipality in the Province of British Columbia, and operates under
provisions of the Local Government Act and the Community Charter. The principal activities of the District include
the provision of local government services to residents and businesses. 

The Community Charter requires local governments to annually adopt a five year financial plan, wherein the total
proposed expenditures and transfers to other funds for a year must not exceed the total of the proposed funding
sources and transfers from other funds for the year. Budget information presented in the financial statements
reflects the budget for the year 2016 of the District of Mission’s 2016-2020 five year financial plan, adopted by
Council Bylaw #5534-2015 (see also Note 15).

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the District are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB").

a. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of
accounting records revenue as it is earned and becomes measurable. Expenses are recognized as they
are incurred and become measurable based upon receipt of goods or services and/or the creation of a
legal obligation to pay. 

b. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of certain receivables and accrued liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements, and that affect the reported amount of related revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. As such, actual results could differ from the estimates. Areas requiring the greatest degree of
estimation include employee future benefits, assessment of contingent liabilities, liabilities for
contaminated sites, landfill closure and post-closure liabilities, allowance for doubtful accounts
receivable, and the estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets. 

c. Inventories Held for Resale

Inventories held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.    

d. Investments

Investments are recorded at cost. Investments are written down to net realizable value when there has
been, in the opinion of management, a decline in market value that is not temporary. Investments in the
MFA Money Market Fund and Short-Term Bond Fund are recorded at market value, which approximates
cost. 

e. Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities, and are generally held for use in
the provision of services. They typically have useful lives extending beyond the current year (with the
exception of prepaid expenses), and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

f. Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets, which are a type of non-financial asset, are recorded at cost, which includes all
amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment. The costs
of tangible capital assets, less residual value, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Asset Category Useful Life Range

Buildings and improvements 5 to 50 years

Drainage infrastructure 20 to 100 years

Information technology infrastructure 3 to 80 years

Land not amortized

Land improvements 35 to 50 years

Landfill infrastructure 10 to 50 years

Parks infrastructure 10 to 40 years

Recycling depot (regional) 7 to 20 years

Sewage conveyance infrastructure (local) 25 to 100 years

Sewage treatment plant (regional)  2 to 100 years

Transportation infrastructure 10 to 80 years

Vehicles and equipment 5 to 20 years

Water distribution infrastructure (local) 10 to 100 years

Water supply infrastructure (regional)  4 to 75 years

In the year of acquisition or disposal, amortization is prorated based on the number of days that the
tangible capital asset is in service or use in the year. Assets under construction are not amortized until
they are put into service. Tangible capital assets received from developers through property development
activities are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt and are recorded as revenue.

g. Inventories of Supplies and Land

Inventories of supplies and land are valued at cost.

h. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of prepaid property taxes and utilities, and various other amounts that have
been collected for which the related services have yet to be performed. The District recognizes these
revenues in the period which the related services are performed. 

i. Restricted Revenue

Revenues or receipts, which are restricted by legislation or that contain stipulations that create a liability,
are deferred and reported as restricted revenues. When qualifying expenses are incurred and/or
stipulations are met, restricted revenues are recognized as revenues in the period which this occurs.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

j. Employee Future Benefits

The District and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan (the "Plan"), and the
employees accrue benefits under this Plan based on service.  The District’s contributions to the Plan are
expensed when incurred.

In addition to the Plan, sick leave and other retirement benefits accrue to the District’s employees. The
costs of these benefits are actuarially determined based on years of service, estimated retirement age,
and expected future salary and wage levels. The obligations under these benefit plans are accrued
based on the projected benefits earned as the employees render the services necessary to earn the
future benefits.  

k. Contaminated sites

A liability for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized when the site is no longer in productive
use and the following criteria are satisfied: an environmental standard exists; contamination exceeds the
standard; the District is either directly responsible or has accepted responsibility for remediation; it is
expected that future economic benefits will be given up and a reasonable estimate of the liability can be
made.

l. Revenue Recognition - Taxation

Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when they meet the definition of an asset, have been
authorized, and the taxable event occurs. Annual levies for non-optional municipal services and general
administrative services are recorded as taxes for municipal services in the year they are levied. Taxes
receivable are recognized net of an allowance for anticipated uncollectible amounts. Levies imposed by
other taxing authorities are not included as taxes for municipal purposes. 

Through BC Assessment's appeal process, taxes may be adjusted by way of supplementary roll
adjustments. The effects of these adjustments on taxes may have been included in initial estimates
when recording revenue; to the extent that adjustments exceed the initial estimates, they are recognized
at the time they are awarded. 

m. Government Transfers

Government transfers, which include legislative grants, are recognized as revenue in the financial
statements when the transfer is authorized and any eligibility criteria are met, except to the extent that
transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability. Transfers are
recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is
recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled. 

n. Related Parties

Effective January 1, 2016, the District adopted the new accounting standard PS 2200 Related Party
Disclosures. The standard defines those entities or individuals that are considered to be a related party,
and requires disclosure of certain related party transactions, typically when a related party transaction
has occurred at a value different from that which would have been arrived at if the parties were
unrelated. This new standard has been applied prospectively. 
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

n. Related Parties (continued)

The impact of adoption of this standard resulted in no disclosures, as the District does not have any
related parties as defined in the standard, and therefore no related party transactions exist. 

o. Inter-entity Transactions

Effective January 1, 2016, the District adopted the new accounting standard PS 3420 Inter-entity
Transactions. The standard establishes how to account for and report transactions between public sector
entities that comprise a government's reporting entity from both a provider and recipient perspective.
This new standard has been applied prospectively. 

The impact of adoption of this standard resulted in no transactions or disclosures, as the District does
not control any entities. Therefore, no inter-entity transactions exist. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2016 2015

Cash $17,474,217 $ 7,663,952

Cashable term deposits 26,000,006 26,000,005

$43,474,223 $33,663,957

Current interest rates on cash balances range from 1.2% to 2.0%. Cashable term deposits are comprised of BC
Credit Union term deposits which are cashable either immediately or within 30 days of issue, with interest rates from
1.80% to 2.25%. 

3. Receivables

2016 2015

Accounts receivable $ 2,533,137 $ 2,290,448

Development cost charges receivable 66,827 133,653

Interest receivable 1,574,605 995,516

Taxes receivable (including residential utilities) 2,866,640 3,346,203

$ 7,041,209 $ 6,765,820

4. Loans receivable

Loans receivable consist of three mortgages with various terms, all of which are secured by the underlying real
estate. 

A long-term mortgage was extended to the Mission Regional Chamber of Commerce in 2001 for the construction of
their facility on District owned land. The mortgage matures April 1, 2030, with a semi-annual interest rate of 5.5%.
The District agreed to a 2 year deferral of regular monthly payments from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2017,
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4. Loans receivable (continued)

during which time interest continues to accrue.

Two additional short-term mortgages totalling $500,000 were extended in 2016, both of which mature within one
year. One of the mortgages is interest-free and payment is due upon demand. The other carries an annual interest
rate of 3%, non-compounding, and a maturity of August 1, 2017.

5. Investments

2016 2015

Fixed term deposits $ 35,776,964 $ 37,827,508

MFA Money Market Fund - 226

MFA Short-Term Bond Fund 3,062,780 4,003,098

$ 38,839,744 $ 41,830,832

Fixed term deposits are comprised of Canadian bank GICs and BC Credit Union term deposits, and mature in years
2017 through 2021, with interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 2.80%. The MFA Short-Term Bond Fund is an
independently managed fixed income investment portfolio, intended for investments of more than three years. The
2016 yield on the MFA Short-Term Bond Fund was 1.43%.

6. Municipal Finance Authority Debt Reserve Cash Deposits and Demand Notes

The District issues debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority ("MFA") of British Columbia.  As a
condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debt proceeds are withheld by the MFA in a debt reserve fund as
cash deposits. These debt reserve funds may be used by the MFA if they do not have sufficient funds to meet the
debt payment obligations of the participating municipalities. The District also executes demand notes in connection
with each debt issue whereby the District may be required to loan certain amounts to the MFA. These demand
notes are contingent in nature. The balances of the cash deposits and demand notes, which are not reported
elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

2016 2015

Cash Deposits

General $ 170,590 $ 165,951

Sewer utility - 3,339

Water utility - 13,044

$ 170,590 $ 182,334

Demand Notes

General $ 320,759 $ 320,759

Sewer utility - 6,408

Water utility - 25,037

$ 320,759 $ 352,204
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7. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

2016 2015

Accounts payable $ 8,526,524 $ 7,376,262

Landfill closure and post-closure care costs 2,047,065 1,893,133

Wages and benefits payable 1,328,535 1,359,327

$11,902,124 $10,628,722

The District’s landfill site is regulated by the British Columbia Ministry of Environment, and as such the District is
subject to certain design, operating, closure and post-closure obligations at the site.  

The costs associated with landfill closure and post-closure care are recognized over the operating life of the landfill
site in accordance with accounting standard PS 3270. The District has estimated and recognized a liability of
$2,047,065 as at December 31, 2016 ($1,893,133 in 2015), for future estimated closure and post-closure costs at
the landfill site. The estimated total expenses for closure and post-closure care are approximately $15.5 million, with
approximately $13.5 million remaining to be recognized. There are currently no assets designated for settling the
landfill closure and post-closure care liability. 

The landfill closure and post-closure care liability is based on the discounted costs associated with the phased
closure of various landfill cells and environmental monitoring for 30 years after the landfill is closed.  Approximately
69% of the landfill's capacity remains, and the landfill is predicted to reach capacity around 2068. The discount rate
used to estimate the liability as at December 31, 2016 is 3.62% (3.42% in 2015).

8. Long-Term Debt Interest

The District does not carry any debt for other entities. All existing long-term debt is repayable in Canadian dollars.
Refer to Schedule 3 for additional details on outstanding long-term debt, including interest rates, maturity dates, and
payments due within each of the next five years. Details of the District's interest expenses are as follows:

2016 2015

Long-term debt interest - general operations $ 378,372 $ 467,851

Interest on prepayments 25,432 29,295

Total interest expense $ 403,804 $ 497,146
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9. Restricted Revenue

Cedar Valley
Environmental
Management

Plan

Development
Cost

Charges
Park Land
Acquisition 2016 2015

Opening balance $ 46,500 $ 2,978,917 $ 3,163,514 $ 6,188,931 $ 5,044,746

Interest income 910 72,363 68,206 141,479 111,775

Fees collected - 1,847,735 622,143 2,469,878 2,168,449

Subtotal - collections 910 1,920,098 690,349 2,611,357 2,280,224

Internal loan payments made - (342,933) - (342,933) (1,005,229)

Internal loan payments received - - 23,848 23,848 -

Expenses - (64,749) - (64,749) (130,810)

Subtotal - amortization of
restricted revenue - (407,682) 23,848 (383,834) (1,136,039)

Ending balance $ 47,410 $ 4,491,333 $ 3,877,711 $ 8,416,454 $ 6,188,931
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10. Employee Future Benefit Obligations

The District provides sick leave and retirement benefits to its employees. The accrued obligations related to these
benefits are as follows:

2016 2015

Accrued benefit liability, beginning of year $ 1,341,345 $ 1,370,820

Current service cost 169,700 155,000

Interest cost 59,600 42,800

Benefit payments (315,701) (229,820)

Amortization of actuarial (gain)/loss 36,050 2,545

Accrued benefit liability, end of year 1,290,994 1,341,345

Unamortized actuarial (gain)/loss 397,806 364,855

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 1,688,800 $ 1,706,200

The District estimated the accrued benefit obligations by actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2015, with
extrapolations to December 31, 2016. The next actuarial valuation is planned to occur for the year ending
December 31, 2018, with results available in 2019.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the District’s accrued benefit obligations are as follows:

2016 2015

Discount rate    2.93%   3.65%

Projected future wage and salary increase   3.00%   3.00%

Municipal Pension Plan

The District and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension plan).  The board
of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for administering the plan, including
investment of assets and administration of benefits. The plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan.
Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2015, the plan has about 189,000 active
members and approximately 85,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 37,000 contributors
from local governments.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and adequacy of
plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member contribution rate to fund the
plan. The actuary's calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the
long-term rate of member and employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the
plan. This rate is then adjusted to the extent there is amortization of any funding deficit. 

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2015 indicated a $2,224 million
funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. The next valuation will be as at December 31,
2018, with results available in 2019.
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10. Employee Future Benefit Obligations (continued)

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions made
during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plan records accrued
liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the
obligation, assets and cost to individual employers participating in the plan. 

The District paid $1,469,319 ($1,331,474 in 2015) for employer contributions while employees contributed
$1,288,922 ($1,170,899 in 2015) to the plan in fiscal 2016.

11. Contingent Liabilities

The District has been named as a defendant in various legal actions.  No reserve or liability has been recorded
regarding any of these legal actions or possible claims if the amount of loss, if any, is indeterminable.  Settlement, if
any, made with respect to these actions would be accounted for as a charge to expenses in the period in which any
outcomes are known.

In 2010, the District received lands at no cost from the Province of British Columbia that were previously dedicated
as provincial highway lands held for future use. The District believes there is a possibility of contamination existing
on these lands from various previous industrial uses, although the scope and cost of remediation is not known at
this time, and there is no known event at this time that would require remediation to be initiated. The District has not
accepted responsibility for any remediation that may be required in the future. 
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12. Accumulated Surplus

2016 2015
Increase /
(decrease)

General operating surplus $ 6,640,988 $ 6,159,476 $ 481,512

Sewer operating surplus 818,448 802,744 15,704

Water operating surplus 973,699 955,016 18,683

Development Corporation surplus 808,869 808,869 -

Appropriated surplus:

Carbon tax 227,526 177,169 50,357

General operating carry forwards - 19,751 (19,751)

Government transfers 50,539 17,952 32,587

Recycling operations 65,192 49,142 16,050

Transit operations 126,481 47,600 78,881

Total Unrestricted Surplus 9,711,742 9,037,719 674,023

Reserve Funds:

Cemetery 128,392 111,073 17,319

Community amenity 1,638,685 1,398,459 240,226

Community works gas tax 3,934,504 6,443,225 (2,508,721)

Debt retirement 10,755 10,548 207

Drainage capital 361,694 - 361,694

Financial stabilization 789,968 889,545 (99,577)

Forestry 2,608,289 1,683,626 924,663

Gaming 662,192 696,306 (34,114)

General capital 2,340,651 2,217,658 122,993

Information systems 271,913 311,030 (39,117)

Insurance 827,479 652,652 174,827

Land sale 603,124 426,427 176,697

Legal 235,628 273,598 (37,970)

Major capital 1,465,967 1,635,966 (169,999)

Policing 519,643 14,469 505,174

Refuse 2,625,727 1,961,782 663,945

Roads capital 493,654 655,210 (161,556)

Sewer capital 14,376,979 13,554,740 822,239

Vehicles and equipment 4,056,519 3,789,738 266,781

Water capital 14,519,298 12,936,862 1,582,436

Total Reserve Funds 52,471,061 49,662,914 2,808,147

Investment in Tangible Capital Assets 443,615,551 432,351,937 11,263,614

Total Accumulated Surplus $ 505,798,354 $ 491,052,570 $ 14,745,784

46



District of Mission
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2016

13. Taxation

Budget 2016 2015

Municipal Taxation:

General municipal property taxes $ 29,770,049 $ 30,087,530 $ 28,895,417

Special assessments and area charges 166,681 172,075 168,026

Total municipal taxation 29,936,730 30,259,605 29,063,443

Collections for Other Taxing Authorities:

Province of BC - school taxes 14,873,900 15,143,851 15,052,800

Fraser Valley Regional District 643,197 698,550 650,845

Fraser Valley Regional Hospital District 1,377,768 1,338,543 1,346,345

BC Assessment 377,873 365,145 374,306

Municipal Finance Authority of BC 1,181 1,283 1,211

Downtown Business Association 77,852 83,838 81,793

Total collections for other taxing authorities 17,351,771 17,631,210 17,507,300

Payments to other taxing authorities (17,351,771) (17,631,210) (17,507,300)

Net taxation for municipal purposes $ 29,936,730 $ 30,259,605 $ 29,063,443

14. Government Transfers

Budget 2016 2015

Provincial $ 2,778,870 $ 1,501,910 $ 1,465,444

Federal - 1,769,362 1,563,292

Total government transfers $ 2,778,870 $ 3,271,272 $ 3,028,736
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15. Budget Reconciliation

The District prepares its five year Financial Plan Bylaw, i.e. budget, in accordance with both Section 165 of the
Community Charter, and Canadian public sector accounting standards. As a result, typically no reconciliation of the
two is required. 

The Community Charter requires that property value taxes and parcel taxes be reported separately in the Financial
Plan Bylaw, while those amounts are combined and reported as taxation revenue in the financial statements.  

Budget 2016 2015

General municipal property taxes $29,770,049 $30,087,530 $28,895,417

Special assessments and area charges 166,681 172,075 168,026

Taxation revenue $29,936,730 $30,259,605 $29,063,443

16. Letters of Credit and Performance Bonds

In addition to the deposits reflected in the financial statements, the District is holding irrevocable letters of credit and
performance bonds in the amount of approximately $4.9 million as at December 31, 2016 ($3.4 million as at
December 31, 2015), which were received from various parties to ensure completion of various works within the
District.  These amounts are not reflected in the financial statements but are available to satisfy any liability arising
from non-performance by the parties.

17. Segment Reporting

The District provides a wide range of municipal services. These services have been grouped into related
department functions or service areas for segment reporting purposes in Schedule 2, which shows the associated
revenues and expenses for each segment. The various segments and associated departmental functions or service
areas are as follows:

Administration and Finance

• General Administration: general government administration including Council support, managing legal issues,
conducting elections, records management, and oversight of other departmental areas.

• Finance and Purchasing: financial oversight and management including financial planning and reporting,
investments, property tax collections, procurement of goods and services and operation of central stores.

• Human Resources: recruitment and selection, employee and labour relations, compensation and benefits,
workplace health and safety, organizational learning, corporate training and development.

• Information Technology: planning, maintaining and operating the District’s information systems technology and
infrastructure.

• Grants to Organizations: provides grants to Mission non-profit organizations including arts and culture, recreation
and social services, and community events grants.
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17. Segment Reporting (continued)

Cemetery

• Administration and operation of the District’s cemetery and crematorium, including arranging for burials and
memorials.

Development Services

• Planning: land use planning and administration of the District’s Official Community Plan (OCP) and zoning bylaws.

• Economic Development: generating and coordinating economic development, tourism and film activity in the
community.

Engineering and Public Works

• Engineering: oversees and plans the District’s extensive infrastructure network of roads, bridges, drainage
systems, etc., and provides for maintenance of municipal facilities.

• Public Works: maintains and builds infrastructure including roads, pedestrian walkways, drainage systems, diking,
and provides for snow removal and efficient operation of the District’s gravel pit.

• Environmental Services: provides direction on environmental issues and leads the District’s commitment to
community-wide stewardship of the natural environment.

• Equipment Fleet: operation and maintenance of the District’s fleet of municipal vehicles and equipment.
Vehicle/equipment costs are charged back to the various user departments.

General Government and Fiscal Services

• Property taxation, investments, general fund debt servicing, municipal hall shared office services, insurance, and
general cost recovery transactions.

Library

• The Library is a member of Fraser Valley Regional Library system, providing access to books, magazines, DVDs,
CD music, materials in other languages, free downloadable e-books and e-audio books. The library provides
information services including programs for all ages, meeting room and study space, wireless connection, online
instant chat, and basic computer instruction.

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services

• Operation of the District’s recreational facilities including the leisure centre and various parks and trails, and for the
development and implementation of arts and cultural programs/events.

• Social Development: developing and implementing an action oriented social development program aimed at
realizing the District of Mission’s mission statement, which is, “…to build a safe and healthy community abundant in
economic, cultural and recreation opportunities.”
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17. Segment Reporting (continued)

Protective Services

• Police Services: utilizes contracted RCMP members and municipal employees to provide proactive general and
community policing services within the District. Regional integrated police units also provide services to the
community related to homicide investigations, emergency response, traffic re-construction, dog unit assistance, and
forensic identification.

• Fire and Emergency Services: fire response, investigation and prevention services, emergency response services
(for motor vehicle accidents and medical incidents), and emergency planning.

• Bylaw and Inspection Services: administering and enforcing the District’s regulatory bylaws including the building,
business licensing, and dog licensing bylaws.

• Restorative Justice: supports people involved with and affected by crime, conflict and other forms of wrong-doing
in repairing the harms done, rebuilding relationships, restoring trust and transforming community through a
voluntary facilitated process involving victims, accused persons, other affected parties and community members.

• Victim Services: helps victims and their families cope with the effects of crime/trauma by providing emotional
support and information on the status of the police investigation and/or the court case. 

• Emergency Support Services: helps victims meet their basic survival needs during a disaster, and to re-establish
themselves as quickly as possible after a disaster. 

Transit Services

• Oversees the local bus system (in partnership with the City of Abbotsford), and contributing to the West Coast
Express train and train-bus services between Mission and Vancouver.

Drainage Utility

• Plans for and maintains the District’s drainage network, which is responsible for managing all aspects of
stormwater, including snow and rainfall related runoff.

Sewer Utility

• Oversees the regional sewage treatment plant and related source control activities (in partnership with the City of
Abbotsford), and plans for and maintains the District’s localized sewage conveyance system.

Waste Management Utility

• Oversees contracted curbside collection of refuse, compost and recyclables, and is responsible for overseeing
contracted operations at the District’s landfill site.

Water Utility

• Oversees the regional water supply and treatment systems (in partnership with the City of Abbotsford), and plans
for and maintains the District’s localized water distribution system.
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17. Segment Reporting (continued)

Forest Enterprise

• Administers and operates the Mission Tree Farm, which includes harvesting of timber, tree planting, forestry road
construction/maintenance, trail building, log marketing, and other forestry related activities.

18. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures for 2015 have been reclassified to conform to the 2016 financial statement
presentation.

19. Funds Held in Trust

The District administers the following trusts on behalf of third parties. As related trust assets are not owned by the
District, the trusts have been excluded from the financial statements. The following table provides a summary of the
transactions within these trusts during the year:

December
31, 2015 Receipts

Investment
Income Disbursements

December
31, 2016

Cemetery perpetual care trust fund $ 828,582 $ 20,795 $ 16,413 $ - $ 865,790

Cemetery pre-need sales trust fund 13,659 - 249 (883) 13,025

$ 842,241 $ 20,795 $ 16,662 $ (883) $ 878,815
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Schedule 1 - Tangible Capital Assets

Included in additions are capital assets such as land and infrastructure, which were contributed to the District from
developers through property development activities, totalling $8,462,350 in 2016 ($4,300,708 in 2015).

The amount of interest capitalized was $- in 2016 ($- in 2015).

Cost,
December 31,

2015 Additions
Cost of

Disposals

Cost,
December 31,

2016

Assets under construction $ 1,075,868 $ 1,724,413 $ (50,620) $ 2,749,661

Buildings and improvements 45,923,247 1,116,258 - 47,039,505

Drainage infrastructure 100,940,769 1,329,662 (32,560) 102,237,871

Information technology infrastructure 2,178,328 398,458 (104,394) 2,472,392

Land 99,513,259 2,816,193 (18,022) 102,311,430

Land improvements 2,139,512 102,388 - 2,241,900

Landfill infrastructure 7,480,011 16,500 - 7,496,511

Parks infrastructure 4,468,536 2,948,732 - 7,417,268

Recycling depot (regional) 535,150 - (9,000) 526,150

Sewage conveyance infrastructure (local) 49,005,226 1,039,900 (1,958) 50,043,168

Sewage treatment plant (regional) 20,849,350 - (7,004) 20,842,346

Transportation infrastructure 158,778,378 3,876,037 (437,084) 162,217,331

Vehicles and equipment 11,483,383 549,607 (242,481) 11,790,509

Water distribution infrastructure (local) 44,364,283 3,361,761 (107,565) 47,618,479

Water supply infrastructure (regional) 25,091,987 196,215 - 25,288,202

$ 573,827,287 $ 19,476,124 $ (1,010,688) $ 592,292,723
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Accumulated
Amortization, 
December 31,

2015
Amortization

Expense

Accumulated
Amortization on

Disposals

Accumulated
Amortization, 
December 31,

2016

Net Book
Value, 

December 31,
2016

Net Book
Value, 

December 31,
2015

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2,749,661 $ 1,075,868

(12,860,204) (1,060,672) - (13,920,876) 33,118,629 33,063,043

(23,329,553) (1,058,224) 32,560 (24,355,217) 77,882,654 77,611,216

(1,295,102) (217,832) 104,395 (1,408,539) 1,063,853 883,226

- - - - 102,311,430 99,513,259

(864,350) (57,170) - (921,520) 1,320,380 1,275,162

(3,142,867) (225,299) - (3,368,166) 4,128,345 4,337,144

(2,391,336) (207,263) - (2,598,599) 4,818,669 2,077,200

(484,706) (10,146) 9,000 (485,852) 40,298 50,444

(11,792,222) (515,267) 1,171 (12,306,318) 37,736,850 37,213,004

(8,022,856) (586,060) 686 (8,608,230) 12,234,116 12,826,494

(45,437,670) (2,541,074) 250,580 (47,728,164) 114,489,167 113,340,708

(5,526,133) (650,680) 192,997 (5,983,816) 5,806,693 5,957,250

(12,764,670) (590,958) 73,865 (13,281,763) 34,336,716 31,599,613

(7,340,704) (718,011) - (8,058,715) 17,229,487 17,751,283

$ (135,252,373) $ (8,438,656) $ 665,254 $ (143,025,775) $ 449,266,948 $ 438,574,914
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Schedule 2 - Statement of Operations by Segment

Protective
services

Engineering
and public

works

Parks,
recreation

and cultural
services

Administration
and finance

Transit
services

General
government
and fiscal
services

Development
services

Revenues

Taxation $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 28,565,655 $ -

Sales of services and regulatory fees 1,056,520 938,345 2,490,802 166,024 713,492 2,652,774 480,640

Government transfers 547,439 114,878 154,867 1,377 - 2,287,261 159,536

Amortization of restricted revenue - 55,443 - - - 127,323 -

Investment income - - - - - 838,471 -

Other revenue 1,400 - 107,745 22,517 - 212,381 -

Developer contributions in-kind
related to capital - 4,797,008 - - - - -

Total revenues 1,605,359 5,905,674 2,753,414 189,918 713,492 34,683,865 640,176

Expenses

Amortization 175,497 3,002,747 1,174,731 - - 332,322 -

Good and services 10,308,217 1,470,778 2,316,805 810,700 2,700,246 910,192 353,482

Grants - - - 370,145 (11) - 8,000

Interest - - - - - 403,804 -

Salaries and benefits 4,708,524 3,123,200 4,277,175 3,694,186 995 303,885 1,881,823

Loss on disposal of tangible capital
assets 309 217,193 - - - (205,097) -

Total expenses 15,192,547 7,813,918 7,768,711 4,875,031 2,701,230 1,745,106 2,243,305

Annual Surplus / (Deficit) $(13,587,188) $ (1,908,244) $ (5,015,297) $ (4,685,113) $ (1,987,738) $ 32,938,759 $ (1,603,129)
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Library Cemetery
Drainage

utility Sewer utility

Waste
management

utility Water utility
Forest

enterprise 2016 2015

$ - $ - $ 1,643,764 $ 50,186 $ - $ - $ - $ 30,259,605 $ 29,063,443

1,613 189,378 63,241 4,617,722 5,233,552 6,592,202 5,354,631 30,550,936 27,768,999

- - - 5,914 - - - 3,271,272 3,028,736

- - 3,329 197,716 - 23 - 383,834 1,136,039

- - 3,507 286,301 44,462 284,663 41,575 1,498,979 1,342,877

1,324,647 - - 4,699 - 24,580 - 1,697,969 1,959,266

- - 943,892 778,771 - 1,942,679 - 8,462,350 4,300,708

1,326,260 189,378 2,657,733 5,941,309 5,278,014 8,844,147 5,396,206 76,124,945 68,600,068

- 3,346 1,058,498 1,101,328 238,184 1,308,968 43,035 8,438,656 8,234,241

1,399,655 52,605 389,216 1,822,610 3,748,824 1,290,907 3,456,950 31,031,187 30,408,834

- - - 1 - - 15,425 393,560 407,041

- - - - - - - 403,804 497,146

19,819 157,057 482,230 591,325 370,483 693,421 704,085 21,008,208 19,465,581

- - - 50,829 - 40,512 - 103,746 921,087

1,419,474 213,008 1,929,944 3,566,093 4,357,491 3,333,808 4,219,495 61,379,161 59,933,930

$ (93,214) $ (23,630) $ 727,789 $ 2,375,216 $ 920,523 $ 5,510,339 $ 1,176,711 $ 14,745,784 $ 8,666,138
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Schedule 3 - Long-Term Debt

Debt Issue #
Year

Issued Purpose
Year of
Maturity

Interest
Rate

General Debt

68 1998 Firehall/EOC building 2018 4.65%           

95 2005 Leisure centre/sports park/water park 2025 1.80%           

99 2006 Leisure centre/sports park/water park 2026 1.75%           

Total Long-Term Debt
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Future Payments (Principal & Interest)

Principal
Outstanding 
December 31,

2016

Principal
Outstanding 

December 31,
2015 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

$ 253,646 $ 371,485 $ 130,462 $ 90,937 $ - $ - $ -

1,637,822 1,790,442 164,285 164,285 164,285 164,285 164,285

3,759,928 4,061,050 321,815 321,815 321,815 321,815 321,815

$ 5,651,396 $ 6,222,977 $ 616,562 $ 577,037 $ 486,100 $ 486,100 $ 486,100
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Schedule 4 - Internal Debt/Transfers Outstanding

Borrowing Fund Lending Fund Purpose
Year Funds
Advanced

Cedar Valley Drainage DCC Major Capital Reserve Fund Gaudin Creek re-alignment, property
purchase 2011

Cedar Valley Sewer DCC Sewer Capital Reserve Fund Cedar Valley gravity trunk sewer,
forcemain, and pump station 2000-2001

Cedar Valley Sewer Extension DCC Sewer Capital Reserve Fund Cedar Valley local improvement area
sewer extension 2002

Regional Sewage Treatment DCC Sewer Capital Reserve Fund Headworks upgrade, transformer
installation 2011

Silverdale Bridge DCC Parkland Reserve Fund Silverdale industrial subdivision bridge 2005

Silverdale Industrial Water DCC Water Capital Reserve Fund Silverdale industrial subdivision water
infrastructure 2006

Silverdale Industrial Sewer DCC Sewer Capital Reserve Fund Silverdale industrial subdivision sewer
infrastructure 2006

Totals

Note: DCC = Development Cost Charge
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Opening
Balance,

December 31,
2015

Advances &
Adjustments Payments

Balance Before
Interest Interest Cost

Interest
Adjustment

Ending
Balance,

December 31,
2016

$ 388,930 $ - $ (127,322) $ 261,608 $ 6,363 $ (6,363) $ 261,608

1,357,578 - (11,148) 1,346,430 26,449 (26,449) 1,346,430

300,223 - (4,735) 295,488 5,827 (5,827) 295,488

192,930 - (175,880) 17,050 2,054 (2,054) 17,050

767,355 - (23,848) 743,507 14,778 (14,778) 743,507

331,048 - - 331,048 6,476 (6,476) 331,048

138,079 - - 138,079 2,701 (2,701) 138,079

$ 3,476,143 $ - $ (342,933) $ 3,133,210 $ 64,648 $ (64,648) $ 3,133,210
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General Operating Fund Net Budget Variance Summary
December 2016, Winter - Year End Budget Review 

DEPARTMENT

  FINAL/  
AMENDED 

2016 BUDGET  

 ACTUAL 2016 
YEAR END 
RESULTS  

Engineering 1,248,438 804,030 -444,409 -36%
Development Services - Planning 1,126,218 765,359 -360,859 -32%

Police Services 10,444,126 10,152,277 -291,849 -3%
Development Services - Inspections 147,033 -12,631 -159,664 -109%
General Government 2,398,295 2,286,111 -112,185 -5%
Tax Levy -31,968,465 -32,043,540 -75,075 0%
Public Works 2,664,872 2,607,744 -57,128 -2%
Finance and Purchasing 1,514,220 1,461,688 -52,532 -3%
Fire & Emergency Operations 3,290,109 3,237,831 -52,277 -2%
Council 551,276 525,307 -25,969 -5%
Parks 948,089 925,428 -22,661 -2%
Economic Development 275,699 258,866 -16,833 -6%
Corporate Administration 2,269,413 2,257,563 -11,850 -1%
Recreation Services 1,727,651 1,720,440 -7,211 0%
Recreation Administration 528,569 524,314 -4,256 -1%
Payroll Overhead Recovery 0 0 0 0%

Municipal Buildings 783,490 791,635 8,145 1%
Cemetery 39,655 55,284 15,630 39%
Public Transit 2,011,313 2,066,619 55,307 3%

Projected Budget Surplus 0 -1,615,677 -1,615,677

Negative variances = Under budget
Positive variances = Over budget

Utility Funds and Equipment Replacement Net Variances Summary
December 2016, Winter - Year End Budget Review 

 BUDGETED 
TRANSFER

TO RESERVE 

 ACTUAL 2016 
YEAR END 
RESULTS  

Waste Management Utility Operating Fund 113,583 842,065 -728,482 -641%
Water Utility Operating Fund 2,893,249 3,419,533 -526,283 -18%
Sewer Utility Operating Fund 1,198,309 1,599,472 -401,162 -33%
Drainage Utility Operating Fund 200,000 258,188 -58,188 -29%
Equipment Pool Operations 700,942 748,510 -47,568 -7%

Negative variances = Additional Transfer to Reserves
Positive variances = Reduced Transfer to Reserves
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$                      %

 VARIANCE
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General Operating Fund Summary
December 2016, Winter - Year End Budget Review 

DEPARTMENT
  FINAL/  

AMENDED 
2016 BUDGET  

 ACTUAL 2016 
YEAR END 
RESULTS  

  
PROJECTED 

2016 YEAR-END 
BALANCE  

 VARIANCE  EXPLANATION 

Cemetery Revenue -234,016 -189,378 44,638 -19% -216,543 17,473 -7% Funding for the Cemetery filing project not required as project is postponed until 2017. Revenue from Cemetery operations lower 
than anticipated.

Cemetery Expenditures 273,671 244,662 -29,009 -11% 260,705 -12,967 -5% Cemetery filing project postponed until 2017 created budget savings.
39,655 55,284 15,630 39% 44,162 4,507 11%

Council and Grants Revenue -223,450 -201,216 22,234 -10% -223,300 150 0% Funding for awards ceremony reduced to actual costs.  Lower funding to the Clark Theatre due to fewer subscribers.  Funding for 
Donations in Kind and Community Special Events not required. One grant payment returned.

Council and Grants Expenditures 774,726 726,523 -48,203 -6% 769,901 -4,825 -1% Reduced costs for service awards ceremony and Council's conventions plus some grants not fully utilized. One grant payment issued 
returned.

551,276 525,307 -25,969 -5% 546,601 -4,675 -1%

Corporate Administration Revenue -203,678 -160,779 42,899 -21% -79,542 124,136 -61% Funding for downtown security not required due to change in scope to Library only.
Corporate Administration Expenditures 2,473,091 2,418,342 -54,749 -2% 2,270,398 -202,693 -8% Costs for downtown security reduced due to change in scope to Library only.  Savings realized in Corporate Training, Stave West 

project and Information Services due to staffing changes which are partially offset by increases in Legal and recruitment costs.

2,269,413 2,257,563 -11,850 -1% 2,190,856 -78,557 -3%

Economic/Land Development Revenue -151,075 -92,523 58,552 -39% -118,416 32,659 -22% Internal funding not required for portion of projects related to Fraser Valley (FV) tech jobs web portal and the tech sector 
development strategic plan which will be completed in 2017.  

Economic/Land Development Expenditures 426,773 351,389 -75,384 -18% 395,299 -31,474 -7% Budget savings from projects related to FV tech jobs web portal and the tech sector development strategic plan which will be 
completed in 2017.  

275,699 258,866 -16,833 -6% 276,883 1,184 0%

Engineering Revenue -431,782 -823,324 -391,542 91% -787,942 -356,160 82% Unexpected increase in subdivision development.   Increased development resulted in increased soil removal and royalties.

Engineering Expenditures 1,680,220 1,627,353 -52,867 -3% 1,590,970 -89,250 -5% Salary savings due to vacant positions in department partially offset by increase to the transfer to Arterial Road reserve from increase 
in soil removal fees.

1,248,438 804,030 -444,409 -36% 803,028 -445,410 -36%

Finance Revenue -167,983 -206,064 -38,081 23% -167,417 566 0% Real estate activity in Mission increased the revenue for tax certificates plus increase in third party billings to customers increased 
the Receivable Administrative Fee revenue.

Finance Expenditures 1,682,203 1,667,751 -14,451 -1% 1,603,163 -79,040 -5% Budget savings from staff absences.
1,514,220 1,461,688 -52,532 -3% 1,435,746 -78,474 -5%

Fire & Emergency Operations Revenue -225,113 -213,548 11,565 -5% -164,891 60,222 -27% Fire Investigation Revenue reduced due to a low number of structure fires requiring an investigation in 2016 plus reduced sprinkler 
permits requested.

Fire & Emergency Operations Expenditures 3,515,222 3,451,380 -63,842 -2% 3,430,758 -84,464 -2% Budget savings due to an unfilled position in fire prevention for a portion of the year plus reduced calls at Station 3.
3,290,109 3,237,831 -52,277 -2% 3,265,867 -24,242 -1%

General Government Revenue -6,258,812 -6,856,101 -597,288 10% -6,821,445 -562,633 9% Investment portfolio performed above expectations.  Unexpected revenue from land sales.  Higher than anticipated gaming revenue.  
See below for increases to transfers.

General Government Expenditures 8,657,108 9,142,211 485,104 6% 8,982,187 325,079 4% Increase transfers to Gaming reserve, Land Sale reserve and interest transferred to reserves resulting from increased revenue above. 
This is partially offset by budget savings from debt issues being refinanced.

2,398,295 2,286,111 -112,185 -5% 2,160,742 -237,553 -10%

Inspection Services Revenue -686,538 -846,728 -160,190 23% -794,226 -107,688 16% Building Permit and Inspection Fee revenue exceeded projections as a result of strong construction activity across the sector.
Inspection Services Expenditures 833,571 834,097 526 0% 833,570 -1 0%  

147,033 -12,631 -159,664 -109% 39,344 -107,689 -73%

Municipal Buildings Revenue -111,016 -112,689 -1,672 2% -115,961 -4,944 4%  
Municipal Buildings Expenditures 894,506 904,323 9,817 1% 864,763 -29,743 -3%  

783,490 791,635 8,145 1% 748,802 -34,687 -4%

PROJECTED VARIANCE
   $ (a)          %

YEAR END   
VARIANCES                          

$                  %
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General Operating Fund Summary
December 2016, Winter - Year End Budget Review 

DEPARTMENT
  FINAL/  

AMENDED 
2016 BUDGET  

 ACTUAL 2016 
YEAR END 
RESULTS  

  
PROJECTED 

2016 YEAR-END 
BALANCE  

 VARIANCE  EXPLANATION PROJECTED VARIANCE
   $ (a)          %

YEAR END   
VARIANCES                          

$                  %

Parks Revenue -150,677 -151,421 -744 0% -104,864 46,557 -31%  
Parks Expenditures 1,098,766 1,076,849 -21,917 -2% 1,062,128 -14,721 -1% Budget savings reflected through reduced Fraser River Heritage Park administration and programming expenses.

948,089 925,428 -22,661 -2% 957,264 31,836 3%

Payroll Overhead Recovery -6,630,256 -6,900,727 -270,471 4% -6,168,937 461,319 -7% Increase in recovery revenue to cover the additional expenses (see below).
Payroll Overhead Expenditures 6,630,256 6,900,727 270,471 4% 6,799,705 169,449 3% WorkSafe BC premiums higher than anticipated. Higher usage of sick time due to serious illnesses with staff.  Increase in holiday 

payout.  
0 0 0 0% 630,768 630,768 >100%  

Planning Revenue -471,332 -643,405 -172,074 37% -660,385 -189,053 40% Development Application Fee revenue exceeded projections as a result of strong residential development activity.  
Planning Expenditures 1,597,550 1,408,764 -188,785 -12% 1,534,188 -63,362 -4% Overall budget savings is a result of staff vacancies.

1,126,218 765,359 -360,859 -32% 873,803 -252,415 -22%

Police Services Revenue -772,544 -818,203 -45,659 6% -754,816 17,728 -2% Revenue generated from higher than anticipated number of court documents served and introduction of new Cost Recovery bylaw.

Police Services Expenditures 11,216,670 10,970,480 -246,190 -2% 11,083,538 -133,132 -1% Savings from Restorative Justice under new format offset by increase in office staffing expenses.  Largest savings is due to surplus in 
RCMP contract.

10,444,126 10,152,277 -291,849 -3% 10,328,722 -115,404 -1%

Public Transit Revenue -726,397 -727,943 -1,546 0% -710,200 16,197 -2%  
Public Transit Expenditures 2,737,710 2,794,562 56,852 2% 2,799,474 61,764 2% Increase in BC Transit costs due to increase to the 2016/2017 annual operating agreement.  Courier costs to transport bus fare 

collected to bank unbudgeted partially offset by budget savings for commuter rail and train bus costs.
2,011,313 2,066,619 55,307 3% 2,089,274 77,961 4%

Public Works Revenue -63,865 -97,043 -33,178 52% -87,090 -23,225 36% Increase in revenue for minor road improvments due to unexpected funding from ICBC and Provincial government for signal 
improvement and reader boards, see below.

Public Works Expenditures 2,728,737 2,704,788 -23,950 -1% 2,761,666 32,928 1% Budget savings in Asphalt Repairs as staffing priorities moved to other areas.   This savings is partially reduced by increase in snow 
clearing due to higher than normal snowfall late in the year plus increase in Hydro rates for street lights.  Increase to Minor Road 
Improvements is due in part to works in conjunction with grant funding, see above.

2,664,872 2,607,744 -57,128 -2% 2,674,575 9,703 0%

Recreation Administration Revenue -378,237 -339,719 38,518 -10% -385,460 -45,741 12% Funding for BC Homeless Partnering Strategy program not received as program will start in 2017.  This is partially offset by 
unexpected grant funding for the District's 125th anniversary and Social Development.

Recreation Administration Expenditures 906,806 864,033 -42,773 -5% 876,155 12,122 1% No expenses for BC Homeless Partnering Strategy program as program will commence in 2017.  This is partially offset by expenses 
related to unexpected grant funding for the District's 125th anniversary and Social Development.

528,569 524,314 -4,256 -1% 490,695 -33,619 -6%

Recreation Services Revenue -2,228,342 -2,513,677 -285,335 13% -2,393,676 -165,334 7% Increased participation in programs 14 and under, Club KIDS, swim lessons, skate lessons and general admissions to the facility.
Recreation Services Expenditures 3,955,993 4,234,117 278,124 7% 4,082,631 126,638 3% Increased expenses to programs with increase in participation plus increased costs to facilities operations.

1,727,651 1,720,440 -7,211 0% 1,688,955 -38,696 -2%

Taxation/Grants In-Lieu Revenue -32,003,465 -32,068,973 -65,508 0% -31,951,670 51,795 0% Increase in 1% Utility tax was unexpected plus increase in penalty calculated.
Taxation/Grants In-Lieu Expenditures 35,000 25,432 -9,568 -27% 25,000 -10,000 -29% Lower participation in pre-authorized property tax payment program resulted in lower interest paid out. 

-31,968,465 -32,043,540 -75,075 0% -31,926,670 41,795 0%

Projected General Operating Fund Balance 0 -1,615,677 -680,583 -653,666

(a) Negative variances represent higher revenue in the revenue section and lower expenses in the expense section.
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Utility Operating Funds and Equipment Pool Operations Summary
December 2016, Winter - Year End Budget Review 

  FINAL/  
AMENDED 

2016 BUDGET  

 ACTUAL 2016 
YEAR END 
RESULTS  

VARIANCE  EXPLANATION

Water Utility Operating Fund
Operating Revenue
Local System Revenue -6,340,959 -6,680,305 -339,347 5% Increased Flat Rate Water revenue due to secondary dwelling charges.  Increase in both commercial and residential meter 

water usage.  Investment portfolio returned higher interest revenue, offset by increased transfer below.  Water service 
connections higher than anticipated, offset by increased costs below.

Regional System Revenue -18,008 -36,720 -18,712 104% Unbudgeted refund from Municipal Finance Authority.
Subtotal Operating Revenue -6,358,967 -6,717,026 -358,059 6%

Operating Expenditures
Local System Expenditures 2,394,630 2,386,269 -8,362 0% Unanticipated equipment replacement required at the Ruskin Station. Expenses related to increase in water service 

connections (see increase in revenue above).  Interest from investment portfolio transferred to reserves.  These increases in 
expenses partially offset by budget savings for System flushing  due to work being postponed.    

Regional System Expenditures 1,071,087 911,225 -159,862 -15% Budget savings from vacant positions, lower property insurance, reduced costs for soda ash treatment partially offset with 
additional work required for creek gravel removal, intake works and Coanda screen repairs.

Subtotal Operating Expenditures 3,465,717 3,297,493 -168,224 -5%

Transfer to Water Capital Reserve Fund (b) -2,893,249 -3,419,533 -526,283 18% Increases in revenue plus overall budget savings results in net increase in transfer to reserve.

Sewer Utility Operating Fund
Operating Revenue
Local System Revenue -4,280,464 -4,524,010 -243,546 6% Increased Flat Rate Sewer revenue due to secondary dwelling charges.  Increase in both commercial and residential meter 

sewer usage.  Investment portfolio returned higher interest revenue, offset by increased transfer below. 

Regional System Revenue -331,983 -425,741 -93,758 28% Higher than normal load received from few industrial customers increased surcharge fee revenue plus unanticipated revenue 
from insurance claim.

Subtotal Operating Revenue -4,612,447 -4,949,751 -337,304 7%

Operating Expenditures
Local System Expenditures 2,158,574 2,179,556 20,982 1% Increased interest revenue from investment portfolio transferred to reserves partially offset by budget savings for system 

flushing  due to work being postponed. 

Regional System Expenditures 1,255,564 1,170,723 -84,841 -7% Budgeted cost share at 23.73%, actual share cost for 2016 was slightly lower at 23.36% plus effluent outfall monitoring study 
completed under budget.

Subtotal Operating Expenditures 3,414,138 3,350,279 -63,859 -2%

Transfer to Sewer Capital Reserve Fund (b) -1,198,309 -1,599,472 -401,162 33% Increases in revenue partially offset by additional expenses resulted in a net increase in transfer to reserve.

Drainage Utility Operating Fund
Operating Revenue -1,704,938 -1,710,512 -5,574 0% Increased number of applications for storm sewer connections and access permits.

Operating Expenditures 1,504,938 1,452,324 -52,614 -3% Budget savings from Drainage Inspection Program, which will complete in 2017, partially offset by higher costs of Major 
Storm Emergency Service for storm cleanup in 2016 and the installation of new catch basins which were lengthy installations.

Transfer to Drainage Reserve Fund (b) -200,000 -258,188 -58,188 29% Increases in revenue plus overall budget savings results in net increase in transfer to reserve.

YEAR END 
VARIANCES

     $ (a)          %
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Utility Operating Funds and Equipment Pool Operations Summary
December 2016, Winter - Year End Budget Review 

  FINAL/  
AMENDED 

2016 BUDGET  

 ACTUAL 2016 
YEAR END 
RESULTS  

VARIANCE  EXPLANATION
YEAR END 

VARIANCES
     $ (a)          %

Waste Management Utility Operating Fund
Operating Revenue -4,327,977 -5,231,265 -903,288 21% Increased revenue at landfill due to extra revenue from contaminated soil, special projects, increased residential traffic and 

recycling residue. Additional revenue from Regional Recycling depot for new tipping fees from private haulers.

Operating Expenditures 4,214,394 4,389,200 174,806 4% Increased costs to landfill operations due to high tonnage received and contaminated soil. Share of AMRD costs increased 
due to Abbotsford private tonnage going elsewhere.  Increase to compost collection cost resulting from switching to bi-
weekly garbage collection which is partially offset by savings to refuse contract. 

Transfer to Refuse Reserve Fund (b) -113,583 -842,065 -728,482 641% Higher revenue at landfill offset by increased costs resulted in net increase to the transfer to the reserve.

Equipment  Pool Operations
Operating Revenue -2,654,865 -2,626,444 28,421 -1% Surplus Equipment Sales lower than expected as sales of several vehicles postponed until 2017.  This is partially offset by 

additional vehicle revenue due to equipment being operational on a 24-hour basis during snow clearing efforts.

Operating Expenditures 1,953,924 1,877,934 -75,990 -4% Overall, the combined maintenance expense for all equipment was 13% under budget partially offset by the increased costs 
in the Equipment Pool Administration.

Transfer to Equipment Reserve Fund (b) -700,942 -748,510 -47,568 7% Lower expenses partially offset by reduced revenue creates a net increase to the transfer to reserve.

(a) Negative variance represents higher revenue in the revenue section and lower expenses in the expense section.
(b) Negative variance represents more funds available to be transferred to reserve than what was originally budgeted.  Positive variance represents less funds available to be transferred to reserve than what was budgeted.
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District of Mission 
Annual Surplus Reconciliation

For the year ended December 31, 2016 

2016

Cash-basis annual surplus, general operating fund $ 1,615,677

Non-cash items included in accrual-basis surplus:

Amortization (8,438,656)

Cost of disposed tangible capital assets (345,435)

Amortization of restricted revenue 383,834

Developer contributions in-kind related to capital 8,462,350

Total non-cash items 62,093

Cash items excluded from accrual-basis surplus:

Transfers to reserves 15,950,034

Transfers from reserves for operating purposes (1,301,610)

Debt principal payments & actuarial adjustments 571,581

Total cash items 15,220,005

Capital revenues and expenses included in accrual-basis surplus:

Small capital expenses (2,588,010)

Capital grants 98,037

Capital recoveries 337,982

Total capital revenues and expenses (2,151,991)

Accrual-basis annual surplus, as per financial statements $ 14,745,784

Appendix C
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DISTRICT OF MISSION 
 

BYLAW 5643-2017 
 

A bylaw to impose property tax rates for the year 2017 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 197 of the Community Charter, the Council shall, before the 
15th day of May in each year, establish tax rates for municipal revenue and for amounts 
collected for the year by means of rates established by the municipality to meet its taxing 
obligations in relation to another local government or other public body, based on the assessed 
value of taxable land and improvements;   
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the District of Mission, in open meeting assembled, ENACTS 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "District of Mission Annual Tax Rates Bylaw 

5643-2017". 
 
2. The following rates are hereby imposed and levied for the year 2017: 

 
(a) for general municipal purposes, including debt, of the municipality, on the assessed 

value of land and improvements taxable for general municipal purposes, those rates 
appearing in column “A” of Schedule “A” attached hereto and forming part of this 
bylaw;  

(b) for policing purposes of the municipality, on the assessed value of land and 
improvements taxable for general municipal purposes, those rates appearing in 
column “B” of Schedule “A” attached hereto and forming part of this bylaw; 

(c) for drainage purposes of the municipality, on the assessed value of land and 
improvements taxable for general municipal purposes, those rates appearing in 
column “C” of Schedule “A” attached hereto and forming part of this bylaw; 

(d) for library purposes of the municipality, on the assessed value of land and 
improvements taxable for general municipal purposes, those rates appearing in 
column “D” of Schedule “A” attached hereto and forming part of this bylaw; 

(e) for purposes of the Fraser Valley Regional District, on the assessed value of land 
and improvements taxable for general municipal purposes, those rates appearing in 
column “F” of Schedule “A” attached hereto and forming part of this bylaw; 

(f) for purposes of the Fraser Valley Regional Hospital District, on the assessed value of 
land and improvements taxable for regional hospital district purposes, those rates 
appearing in column “G” of Schedule “A” attached hereto and forming part of this 
bylaw; 

(g) for purposes of the Mission Diking District, on the assessed value of land and 
improvements within the said Diking District and taxable for general municipal 
purposes, those rates appearing in column “J” of Schedule “A” attached hereto and 
forming part of this bylaw; 

(h) for purposes of the Silverdale Diking District, on the assessed value of land and 
improvements within the said Diking District and taxable for general municipal 
purposes, those rates appearing in column “K” of Schedule “A” attached hereto and 
forming part of this bylaw; and 
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(i) for purposes of the Downtown Mission Business Improvement Area (BIA), on the 

assessed value of land and improvements for Class 5 and 6 only within the said BIA 
area and taxable for general municipal purposes, those rates appearing in column 
“L” of Schedule “A” attached hereto and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST TIME this 1st day of May, 2017 
 
READ A SECOND TIME this 1st day of May, 2017 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this 1st day of May, 2017 
 
ADOPTED this > 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                 ______         
JIM HINDS, ACTING MAYOR  MICHAEL YOUNIE, CORPORATE OFFICER 
       

 
 
 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing to be a true 
and correct copy of "District of Mission Annual  
Tax Rates Bylaw 5643-2017”. 
 
 
 
 
                                                                 
CORPORATE OFFICER  
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DISTRICT OF MISSION
Schedule "A" of Bylaw 5643 - 2017

2017 Tax Rates (Dollars of Tax per $1000 Taxable Value)

Tax Rates for Municipal Purposes

A B C D E = A to D

Property Class General & Debt Policing Drainage Library
Subtotal 

Municipal Purposes

1 Residential 2.15151 1.23168 0.18218 0.15273 3.71810
2 Utility 23.14358 13.25288 1.96026 1.64337 40.00009
3 Supportive Housing 2.15151 1.23168 0.18218 0.15273 3.71810
4 Major Industry 7.30356 4.17540 0.61759 0.51775 12.61430
5 Light Industry 7.30356 4.17540 0.61759 0.51775 12.61430
6 Business/Other 7.84522 4.49563 0.66496 0.55746 13.56327
7 Managed Forest 7.07801 4.05223 0.59937 0.50248 12.23209
8 Recreational/Nonprofit 6.18298 3.53492 0.52286 0.43834 10.67910
9 Farm 12.19160 6.98363 1.03296 0.86598 21.07417

Taxes Rates on Behalf of Other Taxing Authorities Total 

F G H = F + G I = E + H

Property Class

Fraser Valley 
Regional 
District

Fraser Valley 
Regional 
Hospital 

Subtotal Other 
Authorities

Total Municpal & 
Other Authorities

1 Residential 0.08734 0.16827 0.25561 3.97371
2 Utility 0.93978 0.58895 1.52873 41.52882
3 Supportive Housing 0.08734 0.16827 0.25561 3.97371
4 Major Industry 0.29608 0.57212 0.86820 13.48250
5 Light Industry 0.29608 0.57212 0.86820 13.48250
6 Business/Other 0.31879 0.41226 0.73105 14.29432
7 Managed Forest 0.28735 0.50481 0.79216 13.02425
8 Recreational/Nonprofit 0.25067 0.16827 0.41894 11.09804
9 Farm 0.49522 0.16827 0.66349 21.73766

Special Area Municipal Levies

J K L

Property Class
Mission Diking 

District
Silverdale 

Diking District

Business 
Improvement 

Area  (BIA)

1 Residential 0.19466 0.15274
2 Utility 0.68131 0.53459
3 Supportive Housing 0.19466 0.15274
4 Major Industry 0.66184 0.51932
5 Light Industry 0.66184 0.51932 1.67741
6 Business/Other 0.47692 0.37421 1.67741
7 Managed Forest 0.58398 0.45822
8 Recreational/Nonprofit 0.19466 0.15274
9 Farm 0.19466 0.15274
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	0 sc agenda170508
	1a - 2016 Audit results and communications memo
	PURPOSE:
	The purpose of this report is to present to Council the results of the audit of the District’s 2016 financial statements.
	BACKGROUND:
	The District’s auditor, BDO Canada LLP, have provided their “Audit Results and Communications Report to the Mayor and Council”, which is attached as Appendix A. Their report provides a summary of their audit of the District’s financial statements for ...
	Following is a brief summary of the Auditor’s report:
	 Materiality: outlines the materiality levels determined by the auditor for use in conducting the audit. Misstatements are considered to be material if they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ...
	 Audit Findings: summarizes the auditor’s findings during the audit. All audit testing was executed as planned and no issues were noted, the estimates in the financial statements are reasonable, and the disclosures relating to accounting estimates ar...
	 Fraud Discussion: Canadian generally accepted auditing standards require the auditor to discuss fraud risk with Council on an annual basis. This discussion outlines the auditor’s responsibilities for detecting fraud, and confirms the auditor is not ...
	 Internal Control Matters: internal controls are intended to prevent, detect and correct fraud and errors. This section outlines the auditor’s procedures for reviewing the District’s internal controls environment, and confirms there were no deficienc...
	 Appendix A – Draft Independent Auditor’s Report: includes a draft of the Independent Auditor’s Report that will be appended to the District’s 2016 financial statements, which includes the Auditor’s opinion on the District’s financial statements. The...
	 Appendix B – Representation Letter: discusses the various representations that management made to the auditor during the course of the audit; and
	 Appendix C – Management Letter: highlights areas observed by the auditor where they feel they can provide practical and constructive comments on various District policies and practices. It should be noted that the existence of points does not mean t...
	Lastly, the report confirms the auditor’s independence to the Mayor and Council.
	FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
	There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. A separate report discussing the District’s 2016 financial statement results is included on this agenda.
	COMMUNICATION:
	No communication action is required.
	SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION:
	The District’s auditor, BDO Canada LLP, have provided the attached “Audit Results and Communications Report to the Mayor and Council,” as a summary of their audit of the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.
	SIGN-OFFS:
	UComment from Chief Administrative Officer:
	Reviewed

	1b - Mission - 2016 Audit Results Letter Final
	2a - 2016 financial statements
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
	The District of Mission’s draft 2016 financial statements, including the draft audit opinion, are attached as Appendix A. In accordance with audit standards, Council is required to approve the financial statements before the auditors issue their final...
	The District’s accrual-basis annual surplus for 2016 as per the financial statements was $14,745,784, and the general operating fund cash-basis surplus was $1,615,677 for the year.  A reconciliation of the accrual-basis surplus and the cash-basis surp...
	PURPOSE:
	The purpose of this report is to present the District’s draft 2016 financial statements, including the draft audit opinion for Council’s consideration.
	BACKGROUND:
	The District of Mission’s draft 2016 financial statements, including the draft audit opinion, are attached as Appendix A. In accordance with audit standards, Council is required to approve the financial statements before the auditors issue their final...
	A summary of the District’s draft 2016 financial statements, including financial results and financial position follows in this report.
	DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
	The District’s annual surplus for 2016 as per the financial statements was $14,745,784. This amount is calculated using the accrual basis of accounting, and is similar to net income for a business. It does not include certain items such as principal p...
	Appendix B is a summary of the details in the Deputy Treasurer/Collector’s report to Council dated April 3, 2017 entitled Quarterly Financial Reporting – December 31, 2016.  The cash-basis surplus was as a result of several budget savings that occurre...
	A summary of the District’s draft 2016 financial statements follows.
	Audit Opinion
	The District’s external auditors have concluded their audit testing and have issued their opinion that the District’s draft 2016 financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects.
	Statement of Financial Position
	The statement of financial position, which is similar to a balance sheet, summarizes the District’s assets and liabilities, the net of which results in accumulated surplus. The components of accumulated surplus are detailed in Note 12 to the financial...
	 Financial assets: includes assets which are available to discharge existing liabilities. Examples include cash, accounts receivable, and investments.
	 Non-financial assets: includes assets that are held for use in the provision of services and have useful lives extending beyond one year. The majority of non-financial assets are tangible capital assets, such as roads, water and sewer infrastructure...
	At the end of 2016, the District had net financial assets of approximately $55.2 million, which means financial assets were greater than liabilities. This represents a $3.8 million increase in net financial assets over the prior year. Further details ...
	The District had non-financial assets of about $450.6 million at the end of 2016, the majority of which is the historical cost of tangible capital assets, less accumulated amortization. This represents an increase in non-financial assets of approximat...
	Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
	This statement, which is similar to an income statement, summarizes the District’s revenues and expenses for the year, the net of which results in the accrual-basis annual surplus. The annual surplus is added to the prior year’s accumulated surplus, t...
	Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
	This statement adjusts the annual surplus for transactions involving non-financial assets, to arrive at the increase in net financial assets for the year. The net increase in financial assets is then added to the net financial assets at the beginning ...
	Statement of Cash Flows
	This statement summarizes the sources and usage of cash throughout the year, in the categories of operating, investing, financing, and capital transactions. The change in cash and cash equivalents is reflected in the final cash position shown, which r...
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	The Notes to the Financial Statements reflect significant accounting policies, the details of certain amounts shown in the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus, as well as other pertinent information that...
	Note 12 shows the detailed composition of the District’s $505.8 million accumulated surplus, which consists primarily of amounts invested in tangible capital assets, as well as operating surplus balances and reserve fund balances.
	Schedule 1 – Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets
	Schedule 1 reflects the historical cost of tangible capital assets and the changes in the balance of these assets as a result of additions, disposals and amortization expense. The District had approximately $592.3 million (historical cost) of tangible...
	Schedule 2 – Statement of Operations by Segment
	Schedule 2 shows revenues and expenses for the year broken down into functional areas (i.e. segments).  The total revenues and expenses for all of the segments balance to the Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus, as does the total annual su...
	Schedule 3 – Long-Term Debt
	Schedule 3 provides details on the District’s various long-term debt issues that are outstanding, including annual debt servicing requirements for the next five years. The District had approximately $5.65 million of external debt outstanding at the en...
	Schedule 4 – Internal Debt/Transfers Outstanding
	Schedule 4 lists all of the District’s outstanding internal debt (i.e. borrowing from reserves) including advances, adjustments and payments. The outstanding internal debt of $3.1 million as at  December 31, 2016, is entirely related to borrowing for ...
	Paying for growth related DCC projects prior to actual growth occurring is an ongoing challenge. It is important to adhere to a solid pay back plan if and when funds are advanced for DCC projects. Difficulties with payback arise when DCC collections a...
	During 2016, the District repaid about $343,000 of internal loans from DCCs collected during the year, resulting in an approximate 10% decrease in the total amount of internal loans outstanding from the prior year.
	2016 Cash-Basis Surplus and Variance Explanations
	The attached Appendix B provides an explanation of the various departmental revenue and expense variances, which in turn explains the District’s $1,615,677 general operating fund cash-basis annual surplus. Also included in Appendix B are the year-end ...
	The cash-basis annual surplus is different than the surplus shown on the Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus, which is prepared on an accrual-basis in accordance with accounting standards. For example, current year tax revenue is used to p...
	A reconciliation of the two surplus amounts is included in the attached Appendix C.
	FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
	There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. Staff will report back to Council to recommend if any transfers from accumulated surplus to other reserve funds should be considered.
	COMMUNICATION:
	The District’s audited 2016 financial statements will be forwarded to the Ministry of Community, Sport and Cultural Development, prior to the legislated deadline of May 15, 2017. These financial statements will also form part of the District’s 2016 An...
	SIGN-OFFS:
	UComment from the Chief Administrative OfficerU:
	Reviewed
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